# Personal Computer User's Guide

June, 1998

5728891701

TTD2261

# **Copyright Notice**

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without prior written permission from us. No patent liability is assumed with respect to the use of information contained herein. While every precaution has been taken in the preparation of this publication, we assume no responsibility for errors or omissions. Neither is any liability assumed for damages resulting from the use of the information contained herein.

The information contained in this publication is subject to change without prior notice.

## **Trademark Acknowledgement**

Intel is a registered trademark of Intel Corporation. 8086, 8088, 80286, 80287, 80386, 80386SX, 80486SX, 80486SX, 80486DX2, 80486DX2, 80486DX4, Pentium, Pentium Pro and Triton are all trademarks of the Intel Corporation.

IBM is a registered trademark of International Business Machines Corporation. PC/XT, PC/AT, Personal System/2 and Operating System/2 are all registered trademarks of International Business Machines Corporation.

OS/2 is a registered trademark licensed to Microsoft Corporation.

Microsoft, MS, MS-DOS and are all registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation.

Windows and Windows logo are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation.

UNIX is a registered trademark of Cirrus Logic Corporation.

Cirrus Logic is a registered trademark of Cirrus Logic Corporation.

SMC is a registered trademark of Standard Microsystems Corporation.

Cyrix is a registered trademark of Cyrix Corporation.

All other products mentioned herein are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holders.

US EPA Energy Star Program: The Energy Star emblem does not represent EPA endorsement of any product or service.

#### <u>Federal Communications Commission (FCC) Statement</u> FCC Notice - Part 15

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to Part 15 of the FCC rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential

installation. This equipment generates, uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment on and off, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.
- Increase the separation between the equipment and the receiver.
- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected.
- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

Use only shielded cables to connect I/O devices to this equipment.

You are cautioned that changes or modifications not expressly approved by the party responsible for compliance could void your authority to operate the equipment.

THIS DEVICE COMPLIES WITH PART 15 OF FCC RULES. OPERATION IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TWO CONDITIONS (1) THIS DEVICE MAY NOT CAUSE HARMFUL INTERFERENCE. AND (2) THIS DEVICE MUST ACCEPT ANY INTERFERENCE RECEIVED. INCLUDING INTERFERENCE THAT MAY CAUSE UNDESIRED OPERATION.

#### **Safety And Maintenance Precautions**

- 1. Read all of these instructions.
- 2. Save these instructions for future use.
- 3. Follow all warnings and instructions marked on the products.
- 4. Unplug this product from the wall outlet before cleaning. Do not use liquid cleaners or aerosol cleaners. Use a damp cloth for cleaning.
- 5. Do not use this product near water.
- 6. Do not place this product on an unstable surface. If the product should fall, it may become seriously damaged and, more importantly, may cause injuries

to the user.

- 7. Slots and openings in the cabinet and the back or bottom are provided for ventilation to ensure reliable operation of the product and to protect it from overheating. These openings should never be blocked or covered. The openings should never be blocked by placing the product on a bed, sofa, rug or other similar surfaces. This product should never be placed near or over any object which produces heat. This product should not be placed in a built-in installation unless proper ventilation is provided.
- 8. This product should be operated from the type of power source indicated on the label. If you are not sure of the type of power available, consult your dealer or local power company.
- 9. Do not allow anything to rest on the power cord. Do not put this product where the cord could be stepped on.
- 10. Never push objects of any kind into this product through cabinet slots as they may touch dangerous voltage points or cause short circuits, risking the possibility of a fire or electric shock. Never spill liquid of any kind onto this product.
- 11. Please turn off power of all equipment when it is not used for a long time.
- 12. For pluggable equipment, the socket-outlet should be installed near the equipment and should be easily accessible.
- 13. CAUTION: (English)

Danger of explosion if battery is incorrectly replaced.

Replace only with the same or equivalent type recommended by the manufacturer. Dispose of used batteries according to the manufacturer's instructions.

#### ATTENTION: (French)

II y a danger d'explosion s'il y a remplacement incorrect de la batterie. Remplacer uniquement avec une batterie du même type ou d'un type équivalent recommandé par le constructeur. Mettre au rebut les batteries usagées conformément aux instructions du fabricant.

- 14. Do not attempt to service this product yourself. If you have the suspicion that the product is not in proper working order, unplug the unit and seek assistance from qualified service personnel, especially under the following conditions:
  - a. When the power cord or plug is damaged or frayed.
  - b. If liquid has been spilled onto the product, or if the product has been exposed to rain or water.

- c. If the product does not operate normally when the operating instructions are followed. Adjust only those controls that are covered by the operating instructions since improper adjustment of other controls may result in further damage or complications.
- d. If the product has been dropped or the cabinet has been damaged.
- e. If the product exhibits a distinct deterioration in performance, indicating a need for service.

## Canadian Department of Communication Radio Frequency Interference Statement

## (English)

This Class B digital apparatus meets all requirements of the Canadian Interference-Causing Equipment Regulations.

#### (French)

Cet appareil numérique de la classe B respecte toutes les exigences du Réglement sur le materiel brouilleur du Canada.

# **Table of Contents**

# Chapter 1: Getting Started

| Choosing a Location              | 1-1 |
|----------------------------------|-----|
| Unpacking Your PC                | 1-2 |
| Locations and Functions of Parts | 1-3 |
| Front View                       | 1-3 |
| Rear View                        | 1-4 |
| Making the Connections           | 1-4 |
| Signal Cable Connections         | 1-5 |
| Power Cord Connections           | 1-6 |
| Entering the Setup Mode          | 1-6 |

# Chapter 2: Learning The Basics

| Powering On Your PC          | 2-1 |
|------------------------------|-----|
| Using Your Keyboard          | 2-1 |
| Using Your Mouse             | 2-3 |
| Pointing with the Mouse      | 2-3 |
| Clicking the Mouse           | 2-3 |
| Using Your Floppy Disk Drive | 2-4 |
| Inserting a Floppy Disk      | 2-4 |
| Removing a Floppy Disk       | 2-4 |
| Using Your CD-ROM Drive      | 2-4 |
| Inserting a CD-ROM Disk      | 2-5 |
| Removing a CD-ROM Disk       | 2-5 |
| Using Your Hard Disk         | 2-5 |

# Chapter 3: BIOS Setup

| Entering System Setup                        | 3-1         |
|--|-------------|
| Setup Function Menu                          | <u>3</u> -3 |
| Standard Setup Sub-menu                      | 3-3         |
| Pri Master, Pri Slave, Sec Master, Sec Slave | 3-3         |
| Date/Time                                    | 3-5         |
| Floppy A, Floppy B                           | 3-6         |
| Advanced Setup Sub-menu                      | 3-7         |
| Chipset Setup Sub-menu                       | 3-13        |
| Power Management Setup Sub-menu              | 3-18        |
| PCI/PnP Setup Sub-menu                       | 3-24        |
| Peripheral Setup Sub-menu                    | 3-29        |
| Security Function Menu                       | 3-33        |
| Supervisor, User Sub-menu                    | 3-33        |
| Anti-Virus Setup Sub-menu                    | 3-36        |
| Utility Function Menu                        | 3-37        |
| Detect IDE Option                            | 3-37        |
| Language Option                              | 3-37        |
| Default Function Menu                        | 3-38        |
| Original Sub-menu                            | 3-38        |
| Optimal Sub-menu                             | 3-39        |
| Fail-Safe Sub-menu                           | 3-40        |
| Exiting Setup                                | 3-40        |
|  |             |

# Chapter 4: Installing Device Drivers

| Crystal PnP Audio System           | 4-2 |
|------------------------------------|-----|
| Bus Master IDE Device Driver       | 4-4 |
| PCI Universal Serial Bus Driver    | 4-7 |
| Intel 82371xB INF Update Installer | 4-9 |

# Chapter 5: Troubleshooting

| Maintenance and Care | 5-1 |
|----------------------|-----|
| Troubleshooting      | 5-2 |

# Appendix A: Specifications

| Standard Features             | A-1 |
|-------------------------------|-----|
| Motherboard                   | A-2 |
| CPU (Central Processing Unit) | A-2 |
| Power Management              | A-2 |
| Memory                        | A-3 |
| Built-in I/Os                 | A-4 |
| Audio Subsystem               | A-4 |
| Mass Storage                  | A-5 |
| Power Supply                  | A-5 |
| Input Requirement             | A-5 |
| Output DC Load Requirement    | A-5 |
| Keyboard                      | A-6 |
| Environmental Specifications  | A-6 |
| Ambient Temperature           | A-6 |
| Humidity                      | A-6 |
| System Unit Dimensions        | A-6 |

# Appendix B: Connectors And Jumper

| Power Supply Connectors            | B-2        |
|------------------------------------|------------|
| Motherboard Layout                 | B-3        |
| Quick Reference                    | <u>B-4</u> |
| Motherboard Connectors and Jumpers | B-5        |

# **Chapter 1: Getting Started**

Congratulations on your purchase of this new computer system! Your computer is designed to give you high integration, high performance/cost ratio and best multimedia support. It also offers you real ease of use - it's easy to stup, easy to use, and easy to expand – the right choice for your Home PC system.

This user's guide will provide you some basic information on how to use your computer, guide you through the setup procedure, tell you how to install devices and provide many tips on using your new system.

# **Choosing A Location**

Like any other delicate electronic device, your PC should be put in a suitable location. This location should be relatively dry and cool, and must have proper ventilation.

- 1. Your PC should be placed on a flat, sturdy surface where you plan to work. The main unit must have at least *two to three inches of space on all sides* (except the bottom) for proper heat dissipation.
- 2. The entire system, including the main unit, the keyboard, and any other peripheral devices, should be *kept away from direct sunlight* or any other source of extreme heat. Direct sunlight could cause internal overheating, or blemish the exterior of your computer system.
- 3. Keep your PC away from devices that generate radio frequency interference. Such devices include stereo equipment and television sets. Your PC should also be *kept at least three feet from sources of strong magnetic fields,* since they may destroy the information stored on your diskette and hard disk.

# **Unpacking Your PC**

After removing your PC from the box, please check to see if your system is missing anything. Please refer to the checklist below. Your system should contain all of these items:

| 1 | Mini-<br>tower | Main unit  |
|---|----------------|--|
| 2 |                | Win95 PS/2 enhanced<br>keyboard                      |
| 3 | M              | PS/2 mouse   |
| 4 |                | AC Power Cord  |
| 5 |                | This User's Guide, and<br>Warranty Registration Card |

1-2



If any item is missing, please contact your dealer for assistance.

Keep the original carton and packing materials. If you decide to move your PC in the future, the original packaging materials will protect your PC.

# **Locations and Functions of Parts**

## **Front Panel**



1-3



# **Rear Panel**

# **Making the Connections**

Now you are ready to connect all the devices and get the system working. There are two types of connections: **signal cable connections** and **power cord connections**. In this chapter, we will show you how to install some of the more common devices. Be sure to familiarize yourself with the parts and locations introduced in the above section.

▲ Warning: Please make sure that the power switch of your computer is turned **OFF** before connecting any devices. Connecting devices with the power on could damage the system's motherboard.

For installation of devices that are not covered in this manual, please refer to their respective manuals.

### **Signal Cable Connections**

#### Keyboard

The Win95 PS/2 enhanced keyboard's connector is designed to fit into the system's keyboard jack in only one way. Align the connector properly and insert it to the PS/2 keyboard jack at the rear panel of the system.

## Mouse

The PS/2 mouse's connector is designed to fit into the system's mouse jack in only one way. Align the connector properly and insert it to the PS/2 mouse jack at the rear panel of the system.

#### Monitor

Connect the video cable of a VGA or SVGA monitor to the system through the VGA port at the rear panel of your system.

#### Printer

Connect an end of a parallel (also known as Centronics) printer's cable to the receptacle on the printer, then connect the other end to the parallel port at the rear panel of the system.

To print, make sure that you have designated your print destination (usually LPT1:) properly in your application program.

Note: If your printer does not work, refer to your Windows 95 and/or printer manual. Or, contact your dealer for assistance.

## **Power Cord Connections**

We strongly suggest that you use a *multiple-outlet surge protector* (sometimes called a "power strip") so as to prevent damage to your system caused by electrical surges in the power line.

To connect the AC power cord to the main unit, plug the female end of the power cord into the AC Power In on the computer's rear panel. Next, connect all plugs from your system's devices into the surge protector or AC wall outlet.

▲ Warning: If you are using a surge protector, allow the surge protector to have a wall outlet all to itself. Your computer must be plugged into a grounded outlet. Do not use any device to convert the three-prong (grounded) plug of your power cord for use with a two-prong (non-grounded) outlet.

You are now ready to power on your PC. Simply press the power switch. Your computer will then automatically enter the Windows 95 environment.

# **Entering the Setup Mode**

If you need to enter Setup mode, press **DEL** key when you see "**Hit DEL if you want to run Setup**" message on the screen. Then, read the on-screen messages and follow the instructions for your required operations. You can also refer to *Chapter 3: BIOS Setup* for more details.

# Chapter 2: Learning The Basics

This section teaches you some of the basic skills you will need to operate your new PC. The devices or peripherals introduced here include keyboard, mouse, floppy disk drive, hard disk drive and CD-ROM drive.

# **Powering On Your PC**

Locate the power switch on the front panel of your computer. Then, press to turn it on. Upon turning it on, the power indicator LED will be lit.

# **Using Your Keyboard**

The keyboard works like a typewriter. There are, however, a number of keys that are specific to a computer keyboard that you won't find on a typewriter. These are shown and listed below:



• Pressing the *Enter* key tells the PC you have finished

entering a command, and you want the PC to execute it. You will often use this key to tell the PC it is OK to go ahead. This key also starts a new paragraph in word processing programs.

- In many programs, the Esc key returns you to the previous screen, or exits the program.
- In many programs, the Tab key moves your cursor to the next field or menu item.
- The (Windows) key displays the Microsoft Windows 95 Start menu.
- Pressing the (Application) key opens a shortcut menu for the current program. You can use shortcut menus to save keystrokes.
- The function keys, F1 through F12 , are shortcuts for various operations. Different programs use the functions for different operations.
- Holding down the Ctrl or Alt key while pressing another key gives the current program a command.
- <u>Holding down the</u> Ctrl and Alt keys and then pressing the

Del key displays the close program window. You can use this window to close a specific program, or to shut down your PC.

# **Using Your Mouse**

With most software programs, you use a mouse to select options and move around the screen.

You may want to place a mouse pad under your mouse to make it move more smoothly. You can buy mouse pads at computer and office supply stores.



### **Pointing with the Mouse**

Slide the mouse on a flat surface and watch the pointer on your screen move in the same direction. You point to an item by positioning the pointer over the item. If you run out of space on the mouse pad, lift the mouse to reposition it.

#### Clicking the Mouse



The mouse has either two or three buttons: a left and a right button, and sometimes a middle button. You will use the left button most often. Press the left button to highlight items, to select items,

or to run your software programs. The right button has different uses depending on the software. In most software programs, pressing the right button will display a shortcut menu. The center button is rarely used.

To "click" on an item, point to the item on the screen, and press the left mouse button once. To "double-click" on an item, press the left button twice quickly.

# **Using Your Floppy Disk Drive**

Your floppy disk drive uses 3.5" high density dual or single-sided floppy disks.

## **Inserting a Floppy Disk**



Hold the disk with the label and the arrow facing up. Then, slide the disk into the drive until it clicks into place.

## **Removing a**

## **Floppy Disk**

First, make sure the drive indicator light is *off*. Then, press the Eject button located at the bottom right side of the drive.

▲ **Warning:** If you remove a disk while the indicator light is on, you may damage the information on the disk.

# **Using Your CD-ROM Drive**

Before you insert a CD, check for dust or fingerprints on the side of the CD without the title. Dust or smudges may cause the drive to read the CD incorrectly. You can use a clean, dry, non-abrasive cloth to wipe it clean.

## **Inserting a CD-ROM Disk**

Turn on your PC. Press the Eject button found at the lower right side of the CD-ROM drive to open the CD drawer.

Hold the CD by the edge with the title facing up and place it into the CD drawer. Press the Eject button again, or gently push the front of the CD drawer, to close it.



2

## **Removing a CD-ROM Disk**

Press the Eject button to open the CD drawer. Then, lift the CD by its edge and place it in its protective sleeve or case. Press the Eject button again, or gently push the front of the CD drawer, to close it.

# **Using Your Hard Disk**

Your PC is supplied with a number of system programs installed on the hard disk. It is essential that you make backup copies of these system programs.

When the Hard Disk Access Indicator is flashing, do not turn off the computer or reset the system. To do so may cause loss of, or damage to, hard disk data.

Make it a regular practice to back up the data stored in the hard disk.

# Chapter 3: BIOS Setup

If you need to change the BIOS setup of your system, please read this appendix before proceeding.

Usually, you may need to perform setup if you are:

- Adding or removing devices from your system;
- Setting the built-in clock/calendar;
- Enabling or disabling special features such as power management functions, system passwords, etc., or
- Resetting CMOS data if these were accidentally lost or if the on-board battery is changed.
- Changing the type of video display

If you are not too sure on what changes you need to make, please contact your dealer for assistance.

# **Entering System Setup**

There is only one way to enter the Setup Main Menu in order to modify the settings in your CMOS data. After the power on self test is successfully performed during bootup, the following message will appear on the screen for a very short time:

#### "Hit DEL if you want to run Setup"

You have to press **<Del>** key fast enough before your system starts up your operating system. (You can press the **<Del>** key even before the message shows up.) If you are not able to enter the Setup Main Menu, you have to reboot your computer to repeat the above procedure.

If the computer detects discrepancies between your configuration data and actual system configuration, it will prompt you with an error message and request you to run setup. Run Setup Main Menu also by pressing **<Del>** key.

The following screen will appear upon entering the Setup Main Menu:



There are four main function groups, namely: Setup, Security, Utility, and Default. Options of each of these will be discussed in the following sections.

You can use your mouse to click on the desired option, then, double click on that option to select it or to open its sub-menu; or you can use your keyboard to do so. If you are using your keyboard:

- press **<Tab>** key to highlight the desired group
- use **arrow keys** to highlight desired option within a group

Press **<Enter>** key to select the desired option or to open its sub-menu.

A Help screen, as shown below, is also provided by pressing **Alt**>+**H**> keys simultaneously:

| Megat                                  | vends (   | C) 1996 . A | menican Meg | atrends Inc.   |            |
|--|-----------|-------------|-------------|----------------|------------|
| · ···································· |           |             | orororororo | 10101010101010 |            |
|  |           |             |             |                |            |
|  | Setup     |             | 0.0.0       | Se Se          | cupi tu    |
|  |           |             | 0.000       |                |            |
|  |           |             |             |                | Ø          |
| i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i  | Ke        | ystroke/M   | ouse Conven | tion           | e l        |
| Standard                               | Mouse cli | ck : Poin   | t∕Select it | ем             | User       |
|  | Tab       | : Sele      | ct window   |                |            |
|  | Enter     | : Sele      | ct item     |                |            |
|  | Esc       | : Retu      | rn to previ | ous level      |            |
| Power Mgmt                             | Alt+H     | : Help      |             |                |            |
|  | Alt+Space | : Glob      | al exit     |                |            |
|  | Cursor ke | ys : Usua   | l meaning   |                | *****      |
| 1 Util                                 | 1         | 1-0-0-0-0   |             |                |            |
|  |           | 0.000       |             |                |            |
|  |           | 2.0.0       |             |                | 1 <b>1</b> |
| Detect IDE                             | Language  |             | Original    | Optimal        | Fail-safe  |
|  | Judge     | 10101       |             |                | June Dare  |
| ****                                   |           |             |             |                |            |

Press **<ESC>** to return to the previous menu.

## Setup Function Menu

## Standard Setup Sub-menu

This sub-menu allows you to install up to four IDE type storage devices (HDDs or CD-ROM drive); set the system date and time; and/or install floppy disk drives into your system. When this sub-menu is selected, the following appears on screen:

| 200000000000000000000000000000000000000          |                   | \$262626262626  | ?&?&?&?&?&?&? | <u> </u>                               |
|--|-------------------|-----------------|---------------|--|
| 👯 🚖 American                                     | AMIBIOS S         | Setup, Versio   | n - 2.5       |  |
| 🔅 🎨 🏧 Megatrends                                 | (C)1996, Ame      | erican Megatr   | ends Inc.     |  |
|  |                   |                 | ?&?&?&?&?&?&? | 696969696969696                        |
| \$ | \$252525252525252 | \$262626262626  |               | <u> </u>                               |
| 🔅 🗖 Set  | աթ                | 28289           | Secu          | rity 🔅                                 |
| 598  |                   | 22222           |               |  |
| SS 🗗 🔺   |                   | 0.0.0           |               | o 🕺                                    |
|  | Standa            | ard Setup       |               | alf 🕺                                  |
| Standar Standar                                  |                   |                 |               | User 🚫                                 |
| 202  |                   |                 |               |  |
|  |                   |                 |               |  |
| 🔗 📃 Pri Maste                                    | r Pri Slave       | Sec Master      | Sec Slav      | e 🛛                                    |
| Power Mg   |                   |                 |               |  |
|  |                   |                 |               |  |
| <u> 1</u> 7                                      |                   | i€Î∋            |               | 10101010101                            |
| Date/Time  | Floppy А          | Floppy B        |               |  |
|  |                   |                 |               |  |
|  | KOXOX             |                 |               |  |
|  |                   |                 | <b>5</b>      | i in i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i |
| Detect IDE Langu                                 | Lage Kolos (      | )riginal        | Optimal       | Fail-safe                              |
|  |                   |                 |               |  |
| 0.0000000000000000000000000000000000000          |                   |                 |               |  |
| Current Setting : Not                            | Installed         | /*···           |               | Alt+H: Help                            |
|  | 010101010101010   | .0.0.0.0.0.0.0. | 0:0:0:0:0:0:0 | 10101010101010101                      |

### Pri Master, Pri Slave, Sec Master, Sec Slave

Your system automatically detects the storage devices that are installed in your system. However, you can manually select the types of devices through this sub-menu. The selections "**Pri Master**", "**Pri Slave**", "**Sec Master**" and "**Sec Slave**" allows you to set up your IDE devices manually.

The following appears on the "Standard Setup" screen when "**Pri Master**" is selected:

| = Standard Setup |                |      |               |          |  |  |
|------------------|----------------|------|---------------|----------|--|--|
|                  | 🛥 🛛 Primary Ma | as t | er Hard Disk  |          |  |  |
| E                | Туре           | :    | Not Installed | <b>1</b> |  |  |
| Pri              | LBA/Large Mode | - :  | 0ff           | Slave    |  |  |
| 1                | Block Mode     | :    | 0ff           |          |  |  |
| 6                | 32Bit Mode     | ;    | 110           |          |  |  |
|                  | PIO Mode       | :    | Auto          | Ŧ        |  |  |
| Date             |                |      |               |          |  |  |
|                  |                |      |               |          |  |  |

3-4

This same screen appears when "**Pri Slave**", "Sec Master" or "Sec Slave" is selected, only the title bar is changed to "**Primary Slave Hard Disk**", "Secondary Master Hard Disk", or "Secondary Slave Hard Disk", respectively.

Pressing **<Enter>** or double clicking the mouse buttons on the above item "**Type**" will have the following list displayed:

| 4   | -     |       | Hard | Disk T | lbez | •        |     |
|-----|-------|-------|------|--------|------|----------|-----|
|     | Туре  | Cyl   | На   | WP     | Sec  | Size(MB) | 8   |
| Pri | Not I | nstal | led  |        |      |          | ave |
|     | 1     | 306   | 4    | 128    | 17   | 10       |     |
|     | 2     | 615   | 4    | 300    | 17   | 20       |     |
|     | 3     | 615   | 6    | 300    | 17   | 31       |     |
| Dat | 4     | 940   | 8    | 512    | 17   | 62       |     |
|     | 5     | 940   | 6    | 512    | 17   | 47       |     |
|     | 6     | 615   | 4    | 65535  | 17   | 20       |     |
|     | 7     | 462   | 8    | 256    | 17   | 31       |     |
| DE  |       |       |      |        |      |          | Fai |

Press **<PgDn**> key to list more options. Use arrow keys to move among options. Select the type of your IDE device correctly by pressing **<Enter**> or by clicking your mouse. If you are not sure of the type of your hard disk, you can choose "**Auto**" to let the system automatically detect your device.

#### Date/Time

Choosing this item allows you to set the date and time of your system. The following screen appears:



Use the arrow keys to move among the items. Press <+> or <-> keys on your keypad or use your mouse to click on the "+" or "-" icons on the screen to set the current date and time.

Press **<Enter>** or click the upper left corner of the "Date/Time" control menu box to close the window and return to the "Standard Setup" sub-menu.

### Floppy A, Floppy B

These two items allow you to configure your system's floppy drive/s. Selecting "Floppy A" on the "Standard Setup" sub-menu will display the following:

| <br>Floppy A |     |       |
|--------------|-----|-------|
|              |     |       |
| Not I        | nst | alled |
| 360          | кв  | 5%    |
| 1.2          | MВ  | 5%    |
| 720          | кв  | 3½    |
| 1.44         | MB  | 31⁄2  |
| 2.88         | MВ  | 3½    |
|              |     |       |

3-6

Use the arrow keys to select the proper type. Press **<Enter>** or click the upper left corner of the "Floppy A" control menu box to close the window and return to the "Standard Setup" sub-menu.

If you have a second floppy disk drive, follow the same procedure above after selecting "Floppy B" from the "Standard Setup" sub-menu.

#### Advanced Setup Sub-menu

The following screen appears when "Advanced" is selected from the "Setup" menu, and "1st Boot Device" is selected from the "Advanced Setup" sub-menu:



The "**Options**" sub-menu at the right of the "Advanced Setup" sub-menu provides you with the choices available for the item you selected in "Advanced Setup" sub-menu. Use arrow keys to select and press **<Enter>** to complete the setting.

Pressing  $\langle PgDn \rangle$  key or,  $\langle \psi \rangle$  arrow key after the last line shown, will provide you with more items on this sub-menu. These items are as shown:

| Bootly Num-Lock        | : <b>Off</b> | <b>•</b> |
|------------------------|--------------|----------|
| Floppy Drive Swap      | : Disabled   |          |
| Floppy Drive Seek      | : Disabled   |          |
| PS/2 Mouse Support     | : Disabled   |          |
| Typematic Rate         | : \$1ow      |          |
| System Keyboard        | : Absent     |          |
| Primary Display        | : Absent     |          |
| Password Check         | : Setup      |          |
| Boot To OS/2 over 64MB | : No         |          |
| CPU MicroCode Updation | : Disabled   | •        |
| Internal Cache         | : Disabled   | - 1      |
| System BIOS Cacheable  | : Disabled   |          |
| C000,16k Shadow        | : Disabled   |          |
| C400,16k Shadow        | : Disabled   |          |
| C800,16k Shadow        | : Disabled   |          |
| CC00,16k Shadow        | : Disabled   |          |
| D000,16k Shadow        | : Disabled   |          |
| D400,16k Shadow        | : Disabled   |          |
| D800,16k Shadow        | : Disabled   |          |
| DCØØ,16k Shadow        | : Disabled   | +        |

Please refer to the table below for the options available for each item and the corresponding descriptions:

| Item            | Options   | Description   |
|-----------------|---|---|
| Quick Boot      | Disabled<br>Enabled   | Enabling this will boot the system quickly.                             |
| 1st Boot Device | Disabled<br>IDE-0<br>IDE-1<br>IDE-2<br>IDE-3<br>Floppy<br>Floptical*<br>CD-ROM<br>SCSI<br>Network | Sets the first boot<br>device that the system<br>attempts to boot from. |
| 2nd Boot Device | Disabled  | Sets the second, third  |

\* Jumper settings of some floptical devices, such as LS-120, may not be set

3-8

Chapter 3: BIOS Setup

| 3rd Boot Device<br>4th Boot Device                      | IDE-0<br>Floppy<br>Floptical <sup>*</sup><br>CD-ROM | and fourth boot<br>devices that the system<br>attempts to boot from.   |
|---|---|--|
| Try Other Boot<br>Devices                               | Yes<br>No   | If system is unable to<br>boot from 1st to 4th<br>boot devices, "Yes"<br>allows the system to try<br>other devices.  |
| Display Mode at<br>Add-On ROM<br>Init                   | Force BIOS<br>Keep Current                          | "Force BIOS"<br>initializes the system to<br>use the display mode<br>from the VGA ROM.<br>"Keep Current" uses<br>the display mode<br>indicated in CMOS.                        |
| Floppy Access<br>Control<br>Hard Disk Access<br>Control | Read-Write<br>Read-Only                             | "Read-Write" allows<br>read and write access<br>to the floppy drive or<br>HDD. "Read Only"<br>provides only read<br>access (no write access)<br>to the floppy drive or<br>HDD. |
| S.M.A.R.T. for Hard<br>Disks                            | Disabled<br>Enabled                                 | Check your HDD spec<br>if it has S.M.A.R.T.<br>feature before enabling<br>this.  |

to master or slave. You are suggested to refer to their respective manuals for details.

| BootUp Num-Lock       | Off<br>On  | Setting this "On"<br>enables the numeric<br>function of the<br>numeric keypad during<br>bootup.   |
|-----------------------|--|---|
| Floppy Drive Swap     | Disabled<br>Enabled                                | Enabling this allows<br>swapping of two<br>floppy drives.   |
| Floppy Drive Seek     | Disabled<br>Enabled                                | Enables or disables the FPC's floppy drive seek feature.  |
| PS/2 Mouse<br>Support | Enabled<br>Disabled                                | System supports a PS/2 mouse when this is enabled.  |
| Typematic Rate        | Slow<br>Fast                                       | Sets the keyboard<br>controller's typematic<br>rate.  |
| System Keyboard       | Absent<br>Present                                  | "Absent" allows<br>system to boot up even<br>if keyboard is not<br>connected. "Present"<br>requires the presence<br>of a keyboard during<br>bootup. |
| Primary Display       | Absent<br>VGA/EGA/<br>CGA40x25<br>CGA80x25<br>Mono | Sets the type of display<br>connected to the<br>system.   |

l

| Password Check            | Setup<br>Always     | "Setup" allows the<br>system to boot and use<br>the password only to<br>protect the Setup<br>Utility Configuration<br>settings from being<br>tampered with. |
|---------------------------|---------------------|---|
|                           |                     | "Always" requires you<br>to enter the password<br>every time you boot<br>the system.  |
|                           |                     | Set your passwords<br>through the Security<br>Menu.   |
| Boot to OS/2 over<br>64MB | No<br>Yes           | If OS/2 operating<br>system is used and<br>memory is greater than<br>64MB, this has to be<br>set to "Yes".  |
| CPU MicroCode<br>Updation | Disabled<br>Enabled | "Enabled" allows the<br>system to update P6<br>CPU's microCode.   |
| Internal Cache            | Disabled            | Sets the type of<br>internal cache that is<br>available in the CPU<br>chip.   |
| System BIOS<br>Cacheable  | Disabled<br>Enabled | Enabling this allows<br>system to use cache,<br>thus, enhancing system<br>performance.  |

| C000, 16k Shadow | Disabled | System will treat these |  |  |
|------------------|----------|-------------------------|--|--|
| C400, 16k Shadow |          | memory when             |  |  |
| C800, 16k Shadow |          | memory when             |  |  |
| CC00, 16k Shadow |          | Cached .                |  |  |
| D000, 16k Shadow |          |                         |  |  |
| D400, 16k Shadow |          |                         |  |  |
| D800, 16k Shadow |          |                         |  |  |
| DC00, 16k Shadow |          |                         |  |  |

## Chipset Setup Sub-menu

The following screen appears when "Chipset" is selected from the "Setup" menu:

|  | \$9595959595959595959595 | 26262626262626262626262                 |
|--|--------------------------|---|
| 🔆  | Setup, Version 2.5       | 2322.2                                  |
| 🔆 🚣 Megatrends 🔹 (C)1997, Ame                | erican Megatrends I      | nc. 23232                               |
|  |                          | 0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0 |
| 0.0000000000000000000000000000000000000      | \$96969696969696969696   | 02020202020202020202020                 |
| Setup  |                          | Security 🔅                              |
| 2828   | 23232                    | 262                                     |
| Chipset Setuj                                | 9                        | 😑 Options                               |
| 2626   |                          | 0.0                                     |
| Auto Configure EDO DRAM Timing               | : Disabled               | 🚹 🖻 Disabled 🛛 🕅                        |
| EDO DRAM Speed (ns)                          | : 50                     | 🗖 Enabled                               |
| EDO Read Burst Timing                        | : ×333                   |   |
| EDO Write Burst Timing                       | : ×333                   | 262                                     |
| EDO RAS Precharge Timing                     | : 4 Clocks               | s 888                                   |
| EDO RAS to CAS Delay                         | : 3 Clocks               | 262                                     |
| MA Wait State                                | : Slow                   | 2000000000000000000000                  |
| Straing ************************************ | е ;                      | 262                                     |
| SDRAM RAS to CAS Delay                       | : 3 C1ks                 | \$52                                    |
| SDRAM CAS Lattency                           | : 3 C1ks                 | - I 832                                 |
| 2626   |                          |   |
| $\sim$ Detect IDE Language $\sim$            |                          | l Fail-safe 👯                           |
| 2020 S2242                                   |                          |   |
| 20     | 5262626262626262626      | <u>26262</u> 6262626262626262           |
| 🔀 Set Chipset Features                       |                          | Alt+H: Help                             |
| 200000000000000000000000000000000000000      |                          |   |

The "**Options**" sub-menu at the right of the "Chipset Setup" sub-menu provides you with the choices available for the item you selected in "Chipset Setup" sub-menu. Use arrow keys to select and press **<Enter>** to complete the setting.

3-13

Pressing **<PgDn**> key or, **<↓**> arrow key after the last line shown, will provide you with more items on this sub-menu. These items are as shown:

| - Chipset Setu                  | up –  |             |   |
|---------------------------------|-------|-------------|---|
| SDRAM RAS Precharge Time        | :     | 3 Clks      | E |
| DRAM Integrity Mode             | :     | Non ECC     |   |
| VGA Frame Buffer USWC           | :     | Disabled    |   |
| PCI Frame Buffer USWC           | :     | Disabled    |   |
| Fixed Memory Hole               | :     | Disabled    |   |
| CPU To PCI IDE Posting          | :     | Disabled    |   |
| USWC Write I/O Post             | :     | Disabled    |   |
| AGP Aperture Size               | :     | 4 MB        |   |
| USB Passive Release             | :     | Disabled    |   |
| PIIX4 Passive Release           | :     | Disabled    |   |
| PIIX4 Delayed Transaction       | :     | Disabled    |   |
| Clock Generater for DIMM/PCI    | :     | Disabled    |   |
| Clock Generater for Spread Spec | ∶tl§: | Disabled    |   |
| Spread Spectrum Spread Type     | :     | Center      |   |
| Spread Spectrum Modulation      | :     | +-1.5%      |   |
| CPU/PCI Clock Selecttion (Mhz)  | :     | 50.00/25.00 |   |
| USB Function                    | :     | Disabled    |   |
| USB Keyboard Legacy Support     |       | Disabled    |   |

**•** NOTE: The information here are dependent on the specifications of the chips and chipsets used. You are strongly recommended not to change default values unless you are aware and sure of what changes you need to make. Always refer to the chip's or chipset's specifications for correct settings.

| Chapter | 3: | BIOS | Setup |
|---------|----|------|-------|
|---------|----|------|-------|

| Item                                 | Options              | Description  |
|--------------------------------------|----------------------|--|
| Auto Configure<br>EDO DRAM<br>Timing | Disabled<br>Enabled  | Enables or disables<br>automatic<br>configuration of<br>EDO DRAM timing. |
| EDO DRAM<br>Speed <ns></ns>          | 50<br>60<br>70       | Sets EDO DRAM<br>speed if auto<br>configuration is<br>enabled.           |
| EDO Read Burst<br>Timing             | x333<br>x222         | Sets EDO DRAM<br>specifications if auto                                  |
| EDO Write Burst<br>Timing            | x333<br>x222         | disabled.  |
| EDO RAS<br>Precharge<br>Timing       | 4 Clocks<br>3 Clocks |  |
| EDO RAS to CAS<br>Delay              | 4 Clocks<br>3 Clocks |  |
| MA Wait State                        | Slow<br>Fast         |  |
| SDRAM RAS to<br>CAS Delay            | 3 Clks<br>2 Clks     | Sets SDRAM specifications.   |
| SDRAM CAS<br>Latency                 | 3 Clks<br>2 Clks     | Sets SDRAM specifications.   |

Please refer to the table below for the options available for each item and the corresponding descriptions:

| SDRAM RAS<br>Precharge Time | 3 Clks<br>2 Clks  | specifications.                  |
|-----------------------------|---|----------------------------------|
| DRAM Integrity<br>Mode      | Non ECC<br>EC only<br>ECC*                                  | Sets the type of DRAM installed. |
| VGA Frame<br>Buffer USWC    | Disabled<br>Enabled   | Sets Chipset<br>specifications.  |
| PCI Frame Buffer<br>USWC    | Disabled<br>Enabled   |                                  |
| Fixed Memory<br>Hole        | Disabled<br>512KB-640KB<br>15MB-16MB                        |                                  |
| CPU To PCI IDE<br>Posting   | Disabled<br>Enabled   |                                  |
| USWC Write I/O<br>Post      | Disabled<br>Enabled   |                                  |
| AGP Aperture<br>Size        | 4 MB<br>8 MB<br>16 MB<br>32 MB<br>64 MB<br>128 MB<br>256 MB | Sets Chipset<br>specifications.  |

ECC (Error Checking and Correcting) memory detects multiple-bit errors and corrects single-bit errors. Note that ECC mode in your system is enabled only if ECC memory is used and if ECC mode in BIOS setup is enabled. When ECC mode is enabled, performance loss is expected.
Ì

| USB Passive<br>Release                 | Disabled<br>Enabled |   |  |
|--|---------------------|---|--|
| PIIX4 Passive<br>Release               | Disabled<br>Enabled |   |  |
| PIIX4 Delayed<br>Transaction           | Disabled<br>Enabled |   |  |
| Clock Generator<br>for DIMM/PCI        | Disabled<br>Enabled | Sets the clock<br>generator's   |  |
| Clock Generator<br>for Spread<br>Spect | Disabled<br>Enabled | specifications.   |  |
| Spread Spectrum<br>Spread Type         | Center<br>Down      | Sets the clock<br>generator's   |  |
| Spread Spectrum<br>Modulation          | +-1.5%<br>+-0.6%    | Options available<br>only if 'Clock<br>Generator for Spread<br>Spect' is enabled. |  |

\_\_\_\_\_

| CPU/PCI Clock<br>Selection (MHz) | 50.00/25.00<br>75.00/32.00<br>83.30/41.65<br>68.50/34.25<br>83.30/33.30<br>75.00/37.50<br>60.00/30.00<br>66.80/33.40 | Sets the CPU/PCI<br>clock's basic<br>frequency.                              |
|----------------------------------|--|--|
| USB Function                     | Disabled<br>Enabled  | Enables or disables<br>chipset's USB<br>function.                            |
| USB Keyboard<br>Legacy Support   | Disabled<br>Enabled  | Sets USB keyboard<br>as the legacy device if<br>'USB Function' is<br>enabled |

#### Power Management Setup Sub-menu

The following screen appears when "Power Management" is selected from the "Setup" menu:

| \$1267252672672 | Setup       | 260260260260260 |      |          | .26.26.26.2 | Secur | ity      |
|-----------------|-------------|-----------------|------|----------|-------------|-------|----------|
| -               | Power       | Management      | Setu | nb       | _           |       | Options  |
| Power Man       | agement/APM |                 | :    | Disabled | 1           | × 🗆   | Disabled |
| Green PC        | Monitor Pow | er State        | :    | Stand By |             |       | Enabled  |
| Video Pow       | er Down Mod | e               |      | Disabled |             |       |          |
| Hard Disk       | Power Down  | Mode            |      | Disabled |             |       |          |
| Standby T       | ime Out (Mi | nute)           | :    | Disabled |             | 5     |          |
| Suspend T       | ime Out (Mi | nute)           |      | Disabled |             |       |          |
| Throttle        | Slow Clock  | Ratio           |      | 0-12.5%  |             | 2020  |          |
| Modem Use       | IO Port     |                 |      | NZA      |             |       |          |
| Modem Use       | IRQ         |                 | :    | N/A      |             |       |          |
| Display A       | ctivity     |                 | :    | Ignore   | •           |       |          |

The "**Options**" sub-menu at the right of the "Power Management Setup" sub-menu provides you with the choices available for the item you selected in "Power Management Setup" sub-menu. Use arrow keys to select and press **<Enter>** to complete the setting.

Pressing **<PgDn**> key or, **<**↓**>** arrow key after the last line shown, will provide you with more items on this sub-menu. These items are as shown:

| Power Management S                                      | etup                  |
|---|-----------------------|
| CPUFAN Off In Suspend                                   | : Disabled            |
| Device 6 (Serial port 1)                                | : Ignore              |
| Device 7 (Serial port 2)                                | : Ignore              |
| Device 8 (Parallel port)                                | : Ignore              |
| Device 5 (Floppy disk)                                  | : Ignore              |
| Device Ø (Primary master IDE)                           | : Ignore              |
| Device 1 (Primary slave IDE)                            | : Ignore              |
| Device 2 (Secondary master IDE)                         | : Ignore              |
| Device 3 (Secondary slave IDE)<br>Power Button Function | : Ignore<br>: Suspend |
| LAN Resume From Soft Off                                | : Disabled            |
| RTC Alarm Resume From Soft Off                          | : Disabled            |
| RTC Alarm Date  | : Every Day           |
| RTC Alarm Hour  | : 00                  |
| RTC Alarm Minute  | : 00                  |
| RTC Alarm Second  | : 00                  |

3-19

| Item                            | Options                         | Description   |
|---------------------------------|---------------------------------|---|
| Power<br>Manage-ment<br>/APM    | Disabled<br>Enabled             | Disables or enables<br>the power saving<br>features. When<br>disabled, most items<br>in this menu are<br>deactivated. |
| Green PC Monitor<br>Power State | Stand By<br>Suspend<br>Off      | Sets the monitor's<br>power state.<br>Available only if<br>power management<br>feature is enabled.                    |
| Video Power<br>Down Mode        | Disabled<br>Stand By<br>Suspend | Sets the video chip's<br>power state.<br>Available only if<br>power management<br>feature is enabled.                 |
| Hard Disk Power<br>Down Mode    | Disabled<br>Stand By<br>Suspend | Sets the hard disk<br>power state.<br>Available only if<br>power management<br>feature is enabled.                    |

Please refer to the table below for the options available for each item and the corresponding descriptions:

Chapter 3: BIOS Setup

I I

| Standby Time Out<br>(Minute)<br>Suspend Time Out<br>(Minute) | Disabled<br>1<br>2<br>4<br>8<br>10<br>20<br>30<br>40<br>50<br>60                | Sets the time out (in<br>minutes) before<br>system is put to<br>standby/suspend<br>mode. Available only<br>if power<br>management feature<br>is enabled. |
|--|---|--|
| Throttle Slow<br>Clock Ratio                                 | 0-12.5%<br>12.5-25%<br>25-37.5%<br>37.5-50%<br>50-62.5%<br>62.5-75%<br>75-87.5% | Sets the rate of<br>reducing the clock<br>ratio of the CPU.<br>Available only if<br>power management<br>feature is enabled.                              |
| Modem Use IO<br>Port   | N/A<br>3F8h/COM1<br>2F8h/COM2<br>3E8h/COM3<br>2E8h/COM4                         | Sets the I/O port<br>address of modem.<br>Available only if<br>power management<br>feature is enabled.   |
| Modem Use IRQ  | N/A<br>3<br>4<br>5<br>7<br>9<br>10<br>11  | Sets the IRQ address<br>used by the modem.<br>Available only if<br>power management<br>feature is enabled.   |

| CPUFAN Off In<br>Suspend              | Disabled<br>Enabled | "Enabled" stops the<br>operation of CPU's<br>fan if the system is<br>put in suspend<br>mode. Options<br>available only if<br>power management<br>feature is enabled. |
|---------------------------------------|---------------------|--|
| Display Activity                      | Ignore              | During power-saving  |
| Device 6 (Serial<br>port 1)           | Monitor             | state, "Ignore" will<br>not wake up the<br>system if an interrupt  |
| Device 7 (Serial port 2)              |                     | is generated;<br>"Monitor" will check<br>activities of these   |
| Device 8 (Parallel<br>port)           |                     | peripherals and<br>wakes up the system<br>if an interrupt is   |
| Device 5 (Floppy<br>disk)             |                     | generated. Options<br>available only if  |
| Device 0 (Primary<br>master IDE)      |                     | feature is enabled.  |
| Device 1 (Primary<br>slave IDE)       |                     |  |
| Device 2<br>(Secondary<br>master IDE) |                     |  |
| Device 3<br>(Secon-dary<br>slave IDE) |                     |  |

3

3-22

| Power Button<br>Function             | Suspend<br>On/Off   | "Suspend" puts the<br>system in suspend<br>mode if power<br>button is pressed.<br>Pressing this for<br>more than four<br>seconds turns the<br>system off.<br>"On/Off" turns the<br>system on or off<br>when the power<br>button is pressed. |
|--------------------------------------|---------------------|---|
| LAN Resume<br>From Soft Off          | Disabled<br>Enabled | When enabled, the<br>system can be<br>awaken through<br>LAN.  |
| RTC Alarm<br>Resume from<br>Soft Off | Disabled<br>Enabled | Sets the RTC alarm<br>to wake up the<br>system on a specified<br>date and time.   |
| RTC Alarm Date                       | Every Day<br>1 ~ 31 | Specifies the date<br>and time the system   |
| RTC Alarm Hour                       | 00 ~ 23             | can be selected only  |
| RTC Alarm<br>Minute                  | 00 ~ 59             | Resume from Soft<br>Off' is enabled.  |
| RTC Alarm<br>Second                  | 00 ~ 59             |   |

#### PCI/PnP Setup Sub-menu

The following screen appears when "PCI/PnP" is selected from the "Setup" menu:

3-23



The "**Options**" sub-menu at the right of the "PCP/PnP Setup" sub-menu provides you with the choices available for the item you selected in "PCP/PnP Setup" sub-menu. Use arrow keys to select and press **<Enter>** to complete the setting.

Pressing  $\langle PgDn \rangle$  key or,  $\langle \Psi \rangle$  arrow key after the last line shown, will provide you with more items on this sub-menu. These items are as shown:

| -                   | PCI/PnP Setup |          |   |
|---------------------|---------------|----------|---|
|                     |               |          | _ |
| DMA Channel 1       | :             | PnP      | £ |
| DMA Channel 3       | :             | PnP      |   |
| DMA Channel 5       | :             | PnP      |   |
| DMA Channel 6       | :             | PnP      |   |
| DMA Channel 7       | :             | PnP      |   |
| I RQ 3              | :             | PCI/PnP  |   |
| IRQ4                | :             | PCI/PnP  | ÷ |
| IRQ5                | :             | PCI/PnP  |   |
| IRQ7                | :             | PCI/PnP  |   |
| IRQ9                | :             | PCI/PnP  |   |
| IRQ10               | :             | PCI/PnP  |   |
| IRQ11               | :             | PCI/PnP  |   |
| IRQ14               | :             | PCI/PnP  |   |
| IRQ15               | :             | PCI/PnP  |   |
| Reserved Memory Siz | ze :          | Disabled |   |
| Reserved Memory Ad  | dress :       | C0000    | ÷ |
|                     |               |          |   |

3-25

| Item                                 | Options   | Description   |
|--------------------------------------|---|---|
| Plug and Play<br>Aware O/S           | No<br>Yes   | Set this option to<br>"Yes" if the<br>operating system you<br>are using supports<br>Plug and Play<br>feature.<br>This option must be<br>set correctly or PnP<br>adapter cards<br>installed in the<br>system will not be<br>configured properly. |
| Clear NVRAM on<br>Every Boot         | No<br>Yes   | Clears or maintains<br>the contents of<br>NVRAM during<br>bootup.   |
| PCI Latency<br>Timer (PCI<br>Clocks) | 32<br>64<br>96<br>128<br>160<br>192<br>224<br>248 | Selects the PCI clocks.   |
| PCI VGA Palette<br>Snoop             | Disabled<br>Enabled                               | It enables or disables<br>the VGA palette   |

Please refer to the table below for the options available for each item and the corresponding descriptions:

| Allocate IRQ to<br>PCI VGA   | Yes<br>No  | Assigns an interrupt<br>signal to the PCI<br>VGA card.   |
|--|--|--|
| ONBoard Sound<br>Chipset   | Disabled<br>Enabled  | Disables onboard<br>sound when add-on<br>sound card is used.   |
| PCI IDE<br>BusMaster   | Disabled<br>Enabled  | It enables or disables<br>the chipset's IDE<br>bus master.   |
| OffBoard PCI<br>IDE Card   | Auto<br>Slot1<br>Slot2<br>Slot3<br>Slot4<br>Slot5<br>Slot6 | "Auto" checks the<br>PCI IDE cards<br>automatically. You<br>have to choose this<br>option manually if a<br>non-compliant PCI<br>IDE card installed in<br>the system. |
| OffBoard PCI<br>IDE Primary<br>IRQ<br>OffBoard PCI<br>IDE Secondary<br>IRQ | Disabled<br>INTA<br>INTB<br>INTC<br>INTD<br>Hardwired      | Sets the type of<br>interrupt used by the<br>non-compliant PCI<br>IDE card. Options<br>available only if<br>'OffBoard PCI IDE<br>Card' is not set to<br>"Auto".      |
| DMA Channel 0  | PnP  | If your add-on card  |
| DMA Channel 1  | ISA/EISA   | requires specific<br>DMA channel,  |
| DMA Channel 2  |  | choose "ISA/EISA".   |
| DMA Channel 3  |  | "PnP" for auto   |

| DMA Channel 4              |  | selection by your system.  |
|----------------------------|--|--|
| DMA Channel 5              |  | 5  |
| DMA Channel 6              |  |  |
| DMA Channel 7              |  |  |
| IRQ3                       | PCI/PnP  | If your add-on card<br>requires specific<br>interrupt signal,  |
| IRQ4                       | ISA/EISA   |  |
| IRQ5                       |  | choose "ISA/EISA".   |
| IRQ7                       | •  | Otherwise, choose<br>"PnP" for auto<br>selection by your<br>system.  |
| IRQ9                       |  |  |
| IRQ10                      |  |  |
| IRQ11                      |  |  |
| IRQ14                      |  |  |
| IRQ15                      |  |  |
| Reserved Memory<br>Size    | Disabled<br>16K<br>32K<br>64K  | Specifies the size of<br>the memory area<br>reserved for legacy<br>ISA adapter cards.  |
| Reserved Memory<br>Address | C0000<br>C4000<br>C8000<br>CC000<br>D0000<br>D4000<br>D8000<br>DC000 | Specifies the<br>beginning address of<br>the reserved memory<br>area. Options<br>available only if<br>'Reserved Memory<br>Size' is not set to<br>"Disabled". |

| Chapter 3: Bl | IOS Setup |
|---------------|-----------|
|---------------|-----------|

#### Peripheral Setup Sub-menu

The following screen appears when "Peripheral" is selected from the "Setup" menu:

| =             | Setup               |           | Securi ty                               |
|---------------|---------------------|-----------|---|
| -             | Peripheral Setu     | P         | - Options                               |
| OnBoard FDC   |                     | : Auto    | 🚹 🛛 🔲 Auto                              |
| OnBoard Seria | l Port1             | : Auto    | Disabled                                |
| OnBoard Seria | l Port2             | : Auto    | 🗖 🗖 Enabled                             |
| OnBoard Seria | l Port2 Fast IR     | : N/A     |   |
| Serial Port   | 2 Mode              | : Normal  | 5                                       |
| Serial Port   | 2 IR DMA Channel    | : N/A     |   |
| Serial Port   | 2 Duplex Mode       | : Full    | 000000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| Serial Port   | 2 Receiver Polarity | : High    |   |
| Serial Port   | 2 Xmitter Polarity  | : High    |   |
| Serial Port   | 2 IR Interface      | : RX2/TX2 | · 🔁                                     |
|               |                     |           |   |

The "**Options**" sub-menu at the right of the "Peripheral Setup" sub-menu provides you with the choices available for the item you selected in "Peripheral Setup" sub-menu. Use arrow keys to select and press **<Enter>** to complete the setting.

Pressing **<PgDn**> key or, **<**↓**>** arrow key after the last line shown, will provide you with more items on this sub-menu. These items are as shown:

| Demisiber 1 Cotor              |   |          |
|--------------------------------|---|----------|
| Peripheral Setu                | ? |          |
|                                |   |          |
| Serial Port2 Duplex Mode       | • | Full     |
| Serial Port2 Receiver Polarity | : | High     |
| Serial Port2 Xmitter Polarity  | : | High     |
| Serial Port2 IR Interface      | : | RX2/TX2  |
| nBoard Parallel Port           | : | Auto     |
| Parallel Port Mode             | : | Normal   |
| EPP Version                    | : | NZA      |
| Parallel Port IRQ              | : | Auto     |
| Parallel Port ECP DMA Channel  | : | NZA      |
| pBoand IDF                     |   | Reserved |

Please refer to the table below for the options available for each item and the corresponding descriptions:

| Item                    | Options                          | Description  |
|-------------------------|----------------------------------|--|
| OnBoard FDC             | Auto<br>Disabled<br>Enabled      | Enables or disables<br>the on board FDC.<br>"Auto" allows the<br>system to choose<br>on-board FDC or<br>FDC adapter card<br>automatically. |
| OnBoard Serial<br>Port1 | Auto<br>Disabled<br>3F8h<br>2F8h | Sets the base address<br>of the 2 serial ports.  |
| OnBoard Serial<br>Port2 | 3E8h<br>2E8h                     |  |

Chapter 3: BIOS Setup

l

| OnBoard Serial<br>Port2 Fast IR      | -  | Value is set to<br>"N/A" if 'Serial<br>Port2 Mode' is set to<br>"Normal", "IrDA<br>SIR-A" or<br>"ASK-IR".<br>Otherwise, it is set to<br>"Auto".                |
|--------------------------------------|--|--|
| Serial Port2 Mode                    | Normal<br>IrDA SIR-A<br>ASK-IR<br>IrDA SIR-B<br>IrDA HDLC<br>IrDA 4PPM<br>Consumer<br>Raw IR | "Normal" sets serial<br>port 2 for<br>connection to serial<br>devices. Other<br>selections set serial<br>port 2 for the type of<br>infrared<br>communications. |
| Serial Port2 IR<br>DMA Channel       | -  | Value is set to<br>"N/A" if 'Serial<br>Port2 Mode' is set to<br>"Normal", "IrDA<br>SIR-A", "ASK-IR",<br>or "IrDA SIR-B".<br>Otherwise, it is set to<br>"Auto". |
| Serial Port2<br>Duplex Mode          | Full<br>Half   | Sets the mode of communication.  |
| Serial Port2<br>Receiver<br>Polarity | High<br>Low  |  |
| Serial Port2<br>Xmitter Polarity     | High<br>Low  | Sets the mode of communication.  |

| Serial Port2 IR<br>Interface | RX2/TX2<br>IRRX/IRTX                  | Configures Super<br>I/O Chipset's IR<br>pins.  |
|------------------------------|---------------------------------------|--|
| OnBoard Parallel<br>Port     | Auto<br>Disabled<br>378<br>278<br>3BC | Sets the base address<br>of the on-board<br>parallel port. If this is<br>disabled, the next<br>four items are<br>automatically set to<br>"N/A".                                  |
| Parallel Port Mode           | Normal<br>EPP<br>ECP                  | Specifies the type of<br>parallel<br>communication.  |
| EPP Version                  | 1.9<br>1.7                            | Specifies the EPP<br>Version if 'Parallel<br>Port Mode' is set to<br>"EPP". Otherwise,<br>this is set to "N/A".  |
| Parallel Port IRQ            | 57                                    | Specifies the<br>interrupt request<br>signal for the parallel<br>device. Option<br>available only if<br>'OnBoard Parallel<br>Port' is not set to<br>''Auto'' or<br>''Disabled''. |

3

3-32

Chapter 3: BIOS Setup

| Parallel Port ECP<br>DMA Channel | 1 3                                      | Specifies the DMA<br>selection of the<br>parallel device.<br>Option available only<br>if 'OnBoard Parallel<br>Port" is not set to<br>"Auto" or<br>"Disabled" and if<br>'Parallel Port Mode'<br>is set to "ECP". |
|----------------------------------|--|---|
| OnBoard IDE                      | Disabled<br>Primary<br>Secondary<br>Both | It disables or enables<br>one or both on<br>board IDE ports.  |

# Security Function Menu

#### Supervisor, User Sub-menu

Passwords prevent unauthorized use of your computer. If "Password Check" in the "Advanced Setup" sub-menu is set to "Always", it is impossible to boot the computer without entering the user password. If it is set to "Setup", supervisor password is required if configuration changes are to be made.

If you forgot your passwords, there is no other way to retrieve this information. In such case, you need to clear the CMOS data (one way is by removing and installing back the on-board battery) and reconfigure your system.

When "Supervisor" is selected from the "Security" menu, the following screen appears:

3-33



You are requested to type in your password. This can consist of up to six characters. "\*" appears on the boxes instead of the characters that you have typed. After entering these characters, you will be prompted to confirm your password. Type the password again.



If there are discrepancies between the first and second password entered, system will not accept the password. You will be prompted to enter the password again.

The following screen appears if the password is successfully entered:

3-34

| - | Supervisor                      |
|---|---------------------------------|
|   | * * * * * *                     |
|   |                                 |
| 0 | Supervisor Password Installed 9 |
| A | ОК Ј                            |
| к |                                 |
| S | er<br>T U V W X Y Z             |
|   |                                 |

Pressing **<Enter>** or clicking **"OK**" button completes the installation of the Supervisor password.

If you would like to change your current password, select "Supervisor" sub-menu from "Security" menu. You will be prompted to enter current password, type in new password and confirm the new password entered. The dialog box "Supervisor Password Installed" will appear if the changes were successfully installed.

To enter user password, select "User" sub-menu in the "Security" menu and follow the same procedures above. Note that you are allowed to enter user password only after supervisor password is installed.

#### Anti-Virus Setup Sub-menu

Chapter 3: BIOS Setup

This selection provides the user an option to protect the boot sector and partition table of the hard disk from virus intrusion.

Selecting "Anti-Virus" sub-menu from "Security" menu will display the following screen:



Choosing "Enabled" activates your system's virus protection feature.

# **Utility Function Menu**

#### **Detect IDE Option**

Your system automatically detects and configures the IDE devices installed in your system. This sub-menu provides you with details on such configurations.

Selecting "Detect IDE" from the "Utility" menu will display the following screen:

|                    | Magatwan     | ac (C)1     | 996 Amonioan      | Magataande   | Inc           |  |
|--------------------|--------------|-------------|-------------------|--------------|---------------|--|
|                    | - Hegatren   |             | 0:0:0:0:0:0:0:0:0 | i negatienus |               |  |
| 21.02.02.02.02<br> | 0.0.0.0.0.0. | 01010101010 | to Detection      | Status       | 0.0.0.0.0.0.0 |  |
|                    |              |             | to betection      | Status       |               |  |
|                    |              |             |                   |              |               |  |
|                    |              |             |                   |              |               |  |
| ni Mact            | en: Not De   | tected      |                   |              |               |  |
|                    |              |             |                   |              |               |  |
| Pri Slav           | e : Not De   | tected      |                   |              |               |  |
|                    |              |             |                   |              |               |  |
| iec Mast           | er: Not De   | tected      |                   |              |               |  |
|                    |              |             | <b>₽</b>          |              |               |  |
| ec Slav            | e : Not De   | tected      | ĕ                 |              |               |  |
|                    |              |             |                   |              |               |  |
|                    |              |             |                   |              |               |  |
|                    |              |             | <u> </u>          |              |               |  |
|                    | _            |             |                   | ۱ <u>(</u>   | η             |  |
|                    |              | ľ í         |                   |              | <u> </u>      |  |
| Detec              |              | anguage 👌   | VAVA Origin       |              |               |  |
|                    |              |             | ×××               |              |               |  |
|                    |              |             |                   |              |               |  |

If IDE devices are detected, details will be displayed.

#### Language Option

The following screen appears if "Language" is selected from "Utility" menu:



Currently, only "English" is the available option.

# **Default Function Menu**

A set of default values is permanently stored in your system allowing the system to load these automatically if there are invalid CMOS data.

#### **Original Sub-menu**

This option restores the values in the CMOS data before current changes are made. Restoring these values is equivalent to disregarding the changes you have just made.

If this option is selected, the following screen appears:



Select "Yes" to restore old values and disregard current changes.

#### **Optimal Sub-menu**

Chapter 3: BIOS Setup

This option allows system to be configured automatically with the best-case values so as to optimize its performance. When this is selected, the following appears on screen.



Select "Yes" to configure the system with best-case values.

#### Fail-safe Sub-menu

3-39

Select this option if you would like the system to be configured automatically with the most stable and safe settings.

The following screen is displayed when "Fail-safe" option is selected:



Select "Yes" if you would like to load these values.

# **Exiting Setup**

When you are finished with the modifications, or would like to quit setup, double-click on the control menu box appearing on the top leftmost part of the screen. The "Exit Setup" dialog box will appear on screen. You can also exit the system by pressing **<Esc>** key until the "Exit Setup" dialog box appears on screen.



# Chapter 4: Installing Device Drivers

The 3.5" HDD that comes with your system is already pre-installed with Windows 95 operating system. Aside from this, all the required device drivers were also pre-installed in the factory.

You may need to install or re-install device drivers usually due to the following circumstances:

- When you re-install your operating system
- When you reformatted your HDD

This chapter provides you with step by step procedures on how to install the following device drivers into your system::

- Crystal PnP Audio System
- Bus Master IDE Device Driver
- PCI Universal Serial Bus Driver
- Intel 82371xB INF Update Installer

# **Crystal PnP Audio System**

- 1. Complete the installation of Windows 95 operating system. If you are not so familiar with the installation procedure, please refer to the user's guide of Microsoft Windows 95 software package.
- 2. Double click on **'My Computer**' icon, located on the top left part of your screen.
- 3. Choose "Control Panel" icon by double clicking on it, then select "System" icon. The "System Properties" window will be displayed on the screen.

![](_page_62_Picture_5.jpeg)

? ×

- 4. Click on "**Device Manager**" tab and select "**Other Devices**".
- 5. Remove the four **"CS4237B"** by selecting these and click **"Remove"**. Then, click **"OK**" after this message.
- 6. Next, click "**Refresh**". The following screen appears.

![](_page_62_Picture_9.jpeg)

![](_page_62_Picture_10.jpeg)

Ned : Carcel

![](_page_63_Figure_1.jpeg)

you that the system is copying files.

- 13. Your audio driver is now properly installed.
- 14. Check the "System Properties" for the newly installed audio driver:
  - a. Double click on "My Computer"
  - b. Select "Control Panel"
  - c. Choose "**System**" d. Click on "**Device** 
    - Manager" tab

![](_page_64_Picture_8.jpeg)

# **Bus Master IDE Device Driver**

The Bus Master IDE device driver for PIIX4 based platforms under Windows 95 (v 3.01) is provided in the Device Drivers and Utility disk that comes with your system. This is contained in a self-extracting executable file, "bmide\_95.exe". To install this into your system, please follow the instructions below:

- 1. Complete the installation of Windows 95 operating system. If you are not so familiar with the installation procedure, please refer to the user's guide of the Microsoft Windows 95 software package.
- 2. Insert the Device Drivers and Utility Disk in your floppy drive.
- 3. Create a subdirectory in your hard disk and copy the file "bmide\_95.exe" into that subdirectory. Double click on this file to self-extract the necessary program and data files.
- 4. Run "setup.exe" by double clicking on it. This is to install the required driver and documentation.

5. A

Welcome X Screen appears SETUP requires systems with Windows 95" and a PIIX Bus Maste IDE Controller. You must close/exit all Windows programs before running this program. See README.TXT for more information. as shown below. Click "Next". You must read and agree to the license agreement in order to continue the program. Click Cancel to quit Setup or click Next to view license agreement and continue with Setup program. WARNING: This program is protected by copyright law and international treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this program, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and violators will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under law. <u>N</u>ext > Cancel 6. A Notepad 📋 license - Notepad \_ 🗆 × window appears <u>File Edit Search Help</u> SOFTWARE USE AND DISTRIBUTION LICENSE AGREEMENT ٠ for you to read IMPORTANT: By opening this package or installing, distr the Software, you agree to the terms of this Agreement. package until you have carefully read and agreed to the conditions. If you do not agree to the terms of this Agr return the unopened package. and agree to the license agreement. After reading this Please Also Note: - If you are an OEM, the complete LICENSE AGREEMENT appl - If you are an End-User, Exhibit A, the INTEL LICENSE A text file, close the Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Intel grants You and distribute the enclosed software ("Software"): 1.1 LIMITED COPYRIGHT LICENSE: Subject to the terms Intel grants to You a nonexclusive, nontransferable, fully paid-up license under Intel copyrights to: a) reproduce Software internally for Your own de Notepad program by clicking on **File** menu, then choose **Exit**. ÞĒ "Yes" to 7. Click Question × accept/agree to the license agreement Have you read the license agreement and agreed to the terms? and proceed to the

next step. Click "**No**" to terminate this program without installing this device driver into your system.

(<u>Y</u>es

<u>N</u>o

8. Select "INSTALL" start installing the PIIX4 Bus Master IDE device driver.

screen.

(Clicking

terminates

installation process.)

![](_page_66_Picture_2.jpeg)

Therefore Note: If the driver is already installed in the system, setup will ask you whether you want to continue with the installation process or not. If you choose not to continue, the installation process will be terminated.

this

10. After completing the installation process of the device driver, this message appears. Click 'OK" to restart the system.

| Information 🛛 |   |  |
|---------------|---|--|
| •             | SETUP has completed modifications and will now restart your system. |  |
|               | OK  |  |

- 11. After restarting, Windows 95 will display a message that it has found an Intel PCI Bus Master IDE controller hardware and is installing it.
- 12. If a "New Hardware Found" dialog box appears on screen requesting for the location of drivers, select the subdirectory of your Windows 95 with the following path:

C:\WINDOWS\SYSTEM\IOSUBSYS

wherein "C:\WINDOWS" is the subdirectory of your Windows 95. (If your Windows 95 operating system is located in another subdirectory, replace C:\WINDOWS with the appropriate subdirectory name.) Then, click "**OK**".

- 13. You will be prompted to restart your system again. Select "**Yes**" to restart.
- 14. To check if your system has the proper drivers installed, check the following files under the specified subdirectory:

C:\WINDOWS\SYSTEM\IOSUBSYS\**IDEATAPLMPD** C:\WINDOWS\SYSTEM\IOSUBSYS\**PIIXVSD.VXD** C:\WINDOWS\INF\**IDEATAPI.INF** 

wherein C:\WINDOWS is the subdirectory of your Windows 95 operating system. (If your Windows 95 operating system is located in another subdirectory, replace C:\WINDOWS with the appropriate subdirectory name.)

Or, you can check your Device Manager for the new/updated drivers:

- a. Double click on "**My Computer**" icon
- b. Select "Control Panel"
- c. Choose "**System**"
- d. Click on "Device
- **Manager**" tab

![](_page_67_Picture_12.jpeg)

4

# **PCI Universal Serial Bus Driver**

- Note: This device driver should be installed before the "Intel 82371XB Update Installer" is installed in your system.
  - 1. Complete the installation of Windows 95 operating system. If you are not so familiar with the installation procedure, please refer to the user's guide of Microsoft Windows 95 software package.

- 2. Double click on "**My Computer**" icon, located on the top left part of your screen.
- 3. Choose **"Control Panel**" icon by double clicking on it, then select **"System**" icon. The "System Properties" window will be displayed on the screen.
- 4. Click "**Device Manager**" tab and select "**Other Devices**".

![](_page_68_Picture_4.jpeg)

- 5. Insert **"USB Driver & Utility**" Diskette into the floppy drive.
- 6. Run "**usbsupp.exe**" by double clicking on it.

Click

4

7. Click "**Yes**" to accept the agreement and proceed with the installation. Click "**No**" to terminate this program without installing this device driver into your system.

"Yes".

8. The system performs "ScanDisk" operation.

|   | Microsoft USB Supplement 🛛 🛛 🕅   |
|---|--|
|   | Install Microsoft USB Supplement to your system?   |
|   | <u>Yes</u> <u>N</u> o  |
|   |  |
|   | Microsoft USB Supplement   |
|   | Please read the following license agreement. Press the PAGE DOWN key to see the rest of the agreement.   |
|   |  |
|   | IMPORTANT-READ CAREFULLY: This End-User License Agreement  |
|   | [I"EULA"] is a legal agreement between you (either an individual or a<br>single entity) and the manufacturer ("PC Manufacturer") of the<br>computer system ("COMPUTER") with which you acquired the  |
|   | Microsoft software product(s) identified above ("SOFTWARE<br>PRODUCT" or "SOFTWARE"). If the SOFTWARE PRODUCT is not<br>accompanied by a pew computer sustem, you may not use or copu-   |
|   | the SOFTWARE PRODUCT. The SOFTWARE PRODUCT includes<br>computer software, the associated media, any printed materials, and<br>see "selface" or electronic decompart time. Builden accounting or  |
|   | otherwise using the SOFTWARE PRODUCT, you agree to be bound  |
|   | Do you accept all of the terms of the preceding License Agreement? If you<br>choose No, Install will close. To install you must accept this agreement.   |
|   | Yes <u>N</u> o   |
| Ĩ |  |
|   |  |
|   | Select the dispetition want to check to secon  |
|   |  |
|   | Type of last   |
|   | P Traight (  |
|   | Parkan Gradden at partin sharen and  |
|   | Processing and an and a second s |
|   |  |
|   | gins   Ewent gamman  |

9. Next, the system copies the required files. This dialog box appears after the copy operation is completed.

| licrosof | t USB Supplement 🛛 🔀  |
|----------|---|
| į        | Microsoft USB Support Installed! Setup will now restart your system<br>to complete setup. Please close any open applications now. |
|          | OK  |

- 10. Click "**OK**" to restart the system.
- 11. Install the "Intel 82371XB INF Update Installer". (Please refer to the next section, "**Intel 82371xB INF Update Installer**", for the procedures.) The system will then automatically install the drivers for "PCI Universal Serial Bus".
- 12. To check your Device Manager entries for the newly installed "**PCI Universal Serial Bus**" driver:
  - a. Double click on "My Computer"
  - b. Select "Control Panel"
  - c. Choose "System"
  - d. Click "**Device Manager**" tab
  - e. Double click on "Universal Serial Bus Controller"

| System P     | operties                               |               |                |            | ?      |
|--------------|--|---------------|----------------|------------|--------|
| General      | Device Manager                         | Hardware Pr   | ofiles   Perfo | rmance     |        |
| ⊙ Vie        | w devices by type                      | C Viev        | v devices by   | connecti   | on     |
| 🛄 O          | omputer                                |               |                |            |        |
| • • <u>-</u> | CDROM                                  |               |                |            |        |
| 민만들          | Disk drives                            |               |                |            |        |
| 말 늘          | Display adapters                       |               |                |            |        |
| 반물           | Floppy disk contr                      | ollers        |                |            |        |
| 반물           | Hard disk control                      | lers          |                |            |        |
|              | & Keyboard                             |               |                |            |        |
| 12 2         | Monitor                                |               |                |            |        |
| <u> </u>     | Mouse                                  |               |                |            |        |
| 1 - A        | Ports (CUM & LP                        | U             |                |            |        |
|              | Sound, video ani                       | s game contro | liers          |            |        |
| 발물           | System devices                         |               |                |            |        |
|              | <ul> <li>Universal serial o</li> </ul> | us controller |                |            |        |
|              |  | B FLI to USB  | Universal Ho   | ist Lontro | lier   |
| · · ·        | USB HOOK HI                            | ar            |                |            |        |
|              |  |               |                |            |        |
| Pu           | martine P                              | ofresh 1      | Pamaua         | 1          | Drive  |
| - 10         | iperces in                             | eiresn        | Hemove         |            | Finge  |
|              |  |               |                |            |        |
|              |  |               |                | ок 🛛       | Cancel |
|              |  |               |                |            |        |

# Intel 82371xB INF Update Installer

Note: Before proceeding with this section, please make sure that your system have already copied necessary files for the PCI Universal Serial Bus Driver. (Refer to the above section "PCI Universal Serial Bus Driver" for the procedures.)

Your system is equipped with the latest PIIX4 chipset, 82371AB. In order for Windows 95 to recognize this chipset

and configure your system properly, a self-extracting executable file "setup.exe" is included in your Driver and Utility Disk.

- 1. Complete the installation of Windows 95 operating system. If you are not so familiar with the installation procedure, please refer to the user's guide of the Microsoft Windows 95 software package.
- 2. Insert the Driver and Utility Disk in your floppy drive.
- 3. Create a subdirectory in your hard disk and copy the file "setup.exe" into that subdirectory. Double click on this file to self-extract the necessary program and data files.

Setup

- 4. Run "setup.exe" by double clicking on it. This message appears:
- 5. Next, a Welcome Screen appears as shown below. Click "**Next**".
- 6. The software license agreement window After appears. reading this text file, click "Yes" to accept the license agreement. Click "No" to this terminate program without installing this device driver into your system.

![](_page_70_Picture_9.jpeg)

![](_page_70_Picture_10.jpeg)

7. When the Installer Screen appears, click "**Next**".

![](_page_71_Picture_2.jpeg)

8. The installer has completed the required modifications. If the following dialog box appears, click "**OK**" to restart your system.

![](_page_71_Picture_4.jpeg)

- 9. After restarting, follow the screen instructions and use default settings. (Press <Enter> key to accept the default settings.)
- 10. To check your Device Manager for the modifications made:
  - a. Double click on "My Computer"
  - b. Select "Control Panel"
  - c. Choose "System"
  - d. Click on "**Device Manager**" tab
  - e. Double click "System devices"

![](_page_71_Picture_12.jpeg)
# **Chapter 5: Troubleshooting**

Your PC is designed and manufactured to be durable and to give you trouble-free service. Nevertheless, like any other piece of electronic equipment, it will require periodic maintenance.

## **Maintenance And Care**

- Do not place your PC on an unstable cart, stand or table. Dropping your PC may cause serious damage.
- Do not place your PC in a sunlit window, excessive heat will shorten its life.
- Do not put any liquids near your PC.
- Do not apply power to the system until all components are connected.
- Disconnect any cord or cable by pulling the plug, not by pulling the cord or cable itself.
- Clean your PC cover when it has gathered too much dust. Be sure to turn it off and disconnect all power cords before using a damp piece of cloth to clean it. Do not apply liquid or any cleaner directly to your computer.

**Note**: Never use detergents or other chemicals to clean your PC.

- Use a Surge Protector, if possible, for the computer and all external devices, such as your printer.
- Do not use a power cable that does not meet specifications.
- Do not unplug the power cord while the system is on. After you have switched off the power, wait ten seconds before switching on again.
- Do not forget to shutdown Windows 95 before turning off your PC.

5

• If you have any doubts regarding the operation of your PC, consult your dealer for assistance.

## Troubleshooting

If you have trouble with your PC, take a few minutes to read the following information. If your problem is related to a particular procedure, you should also look for information on that procedure in Windows 95 Help.

#### **Common Problems And Solutions**

Listed below are some problems you may encounter, and some suggestions on how to correct them.

1. The computer is turned on, but the screen is dark.

One of the following is probably the cause:

- The computer isn't getting power. Check that the computer's power cord is firmly connected to the computer and plugged into a grounded three prong electrical outlet. Also check if the outlet has power.
- The VGA monitor is not properly connected to the PC main unit. Check the video cable connection.
- The computer is in sleep mode. Press a key on the keyboard.
- The monitor's brightness control is not adjusted properly. Check the monitor's brightness control and adjust it to the desired level.
- A screen saver program may darken the screen when the computer has not been used for a certain period. Press a key or move the mouse to turn off the screen saver program.

- 2. The computer's clock keeps time inaccurately.
  - The on-board Lithium battery is dead or exhausted. Contact your dealer to replace it.
- 3. My keyboard doesn't work.
  - Check that the keyboard cable is properly connected to the keyboard port (JKB).
- 4. My mouse doesn't work.
  - Check that the mouse cable is properly connected to the mouse port (JMS).
- 5. My 3.5" floppy disk doesn't work.
  - Remove the 3.5" diskette from the drive and check if the diskette was inserted correctly, or if you are using the correct type of disk drive.
  - Check if disk drive is configured correctly in BIOS by pressing F2 key to enter Setup Utility during boot-up.
- 6. I get a non-system disk error message when I turn on my computer.
  - A non-system disk error occurs when a floppy disk is inserted into the floppy disk drive when the computer is turned on. Remove the floppy disk from the drive and press any key on the keyboard to complete the boot up.
- 7. I insert a CD-ROM disk, but the computer does not detect it.
  - Make sure that the disk label is facing up and the disk is properly placed in the CD drawer.
  - Make sure that the CD drawer is closed all the way.
  - Make sure that the CD-ROM device driver software is installed.
- 8. My computer ejects a CD-ROM disk without giving any error message.
  - Make sure that the disk is flat in the tray and the disk label is facing up.

5-3

5

- The disk may need to be cleaned. If there are visible scratches on the shiny side of the disk, you may be able to remove them with a CD polishing kit. If the scratches can't be removed, you'll need to replace the disk.
- The disk may be damaged. Try other disk/s in the drive. If the drive reads other disk/s, the original disk is probably damaged. You may also try the original disk in another drive. If the same thing happens, the original disk is probably damaged.
- 9. I can't open a document on a CD-ROM disk.
  - Try opening the application program first; then open the document.
  - Read the manual that came with your CD-ROM disk. Some disks come with software that you need to install on your computer before using it.
- 10. My printer doesn't work.
  - Check your printer settings in the Printer Manager, make sure that you have selected the correct printer.
  - Turn off the computer and printer and check printer cable connection.
  - If none of these suggestions solves the problem, reinstall your printer driver. If your printer is an older model, do not use the driver that came with the printer. Instead, use the updated printer drivers provided on the Windows 95 CD-ROM that came with your PC system. These drivers are created especially for use with your computer.

# **Appendix A: Specifications**

Please refer to the following appendix for the specifications of your computer.

A

## **Standard Features**

- High performance system using Intel Pentium II CPU
- Intel chipset (82443LX), PIIX4 (82371AB)
- 1MB Flash ROM with AMI BIOS
- ATX form-factor
- Real-time clock and system configuration in PIIX4 with battery backup
- Three DIMM sockets, for maximum of 384MB memory
- Industry standard 16-bit audio using CS4237B audio chip
- Built-in ports: serial ports x2, parallel, PS/2 keyboard, PS/2 mouse, USB ports x2, game/MIDI, microphone in, audio line in, and audio line out
- Expansion slots: ISA slots x2, PCI slots x3, combo expansion slot x1, AGP slot x1
- 104/105 key PS/2 enhanced keyboard
- Runs under MS-DOS, Windows 95, UNIX, OS/2, etc.

## Motherboard

### **CPU (Central Processing Unit)**

Single Pentium II processor at 233, 266, 300, or 333MHz

- MMX<sup>TM</sup> technology implemented.
- Full backward compatibility with 8086, 80286, Intel386<sup>TM</sup>, Intel486<sup>TM</sup>, Pentium, and Pentium Pro processors.
- Processor's VID pins automatically program the voltage regulator on the motherboard to the required processor voltage.

## Built-in L2 cache

L2 cache is located on the substrate of the S.E.C. cartridge. This includes burst pipelined synchronous static RAM (BSRAM) and tag RAM. There are a total of four BSRAM components, providing 512KB cache.

#### Numeric Coprocessor

- Significantly increases the speed of floating-point operations
- Complies with ANSI/IEEE standard 754-1985.

#### **Power Management**

- PC97 compliant APM (Advanced Power Management) power management feature supported.
- ACPI (Advanced Configuration and Power Interface) power management feature supported in hardware. To enable this feature, OS support and BIOS upgrade is necessary.

#### Memory

A

- 1MB Flash ROM with AMI BIOS
- Three DIMM (dual inline memory module) sockets provided for maximum of 384MB memory
- 168-pin 3.3 Vdc DIMMs or SDRAMs<sup>1</sup> supported. Memory access time of SDRAMs must be 66MHz.
- 64-bit non-ECC memory and 72-bit ECC<sup>2</sup> memory supported. System automatically detects the type of memory installed. You can enable or disable ECC mode through BIOS Setup if ECC memory is used. (Refer to *Chapter 3, BIOS Setup*, for the procedures.)
- Single- or double-sided DIMMs in the following sizes are supported:

| DIMM Size | Non-ECC type | ECC type    |
|-----------|--------------|-------------|
| 8MB       | 1Mbit x 64   | 1Mbit x 72  |
| 16MB      | 2Mbit x 64   | 2Mbit x 72  |
| 32 MB     | 4Mbit x 64   | 4Mbit x 72  |
| 64MB      | 8Mbit x 64   | 8Mbit x 72  |
| 128MB     | 16Mbit x 64  | 16Mbit x 72 |

• DIMMs or SDRAMs can be installed in any of the three sockets. Memory of different sizes and speed can be used.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> SDRAM (Synchronous DRAM) improves memory performance by having memory access time in synchronous with memory clock cycle. This simplifies the timing design and increases memory speed since all timing is dependent on the number of memory clock cycles.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> ECC (Error Checking and Correcting) memory detects multiple-bit errors and corrects single-bit errors.Note that ECC mode in your system is enabled only if ECC memory is used and if ECC mode in BIOS setup is enabled. When ECC mode is enabled, performance loss is expected.

BIOS automatically detects memory type, size and speed.

#### **Built-in I/Os**

- Keyboard controller and interface
- Real-time clock/calendar
- CMOS RAM to maintain system configuration
- Two serial ports and one parallel port
- Two USB ports and one PS/2 mouse port
- Floppy Disk Controller (FDC)
- Two built-in PCI-set IDE interfaces
- Supports and IrDA and Consumer IR-compliant infrared interface
- PS/2 keyboard port, Game/MIDI port
- Microphone in jack, audio line in jack and audio line out jack
- Two ISA slots, three PCI slots, one combo expansion slot, and one AGP slot

## **Audio Subsystem**

- Multimedia audio system using CS4237B
- Compatible with Sound Blaster, Sound Blaster Pro ™, and Microsoft Windows Sound System ™
- Integrated SRS 3D Sound Technology
- Fully Plug-and-Play ISA compatible
- MPU-401 MIDI interface

## **Mass Storage**

A

There are a total of six half-height drive bays available for this system. These include two 5.25" exposed bays, two 3.5" exposed bays, and two 3.5" enclosed bays

## **Power Supply**

## **Input Requirement**

Your system comes with a universal switching power supply that automatically switches to the required input voltage when turned on.

| Voltage (Vac) | Range (Vac) | Current (A) |
|---------------|-------------|-------------|
| 115           | 100 to 125  | 1.5 max.    |
| 230           | 200 to 240  | 0.7 max.    |

The recommended voltages and current ratings of the plug and power cord are:

| Line Voltage | Recognized<br>Mark<br>(Safety Standard) | Type Used  |
|--------------|---|------------|
| 110-125 Vac  | UL, CSA, etc.                           | 125V, 10A  |
| 220-240 Vac  | TUV, GS, etc.                           | 230V, 7.5A |

## **Output DC Load Requirement**

| Nominal Load<br>Output | Maximum<br>Current (A) | Regulation<br>Tolerance |
|------------------------|------------------------|-------------------------|
| +5 Vdc                 | 22.0                   | +/- 5%                  |
| -5 Vdc                 | 0.5                    | +/- 10%                 |
| +3.3Vdc                | 14.0                   | +/- 5%                  |
| +5VSB                  | 0.1                    | +/- 5%                  |

# A

| +12 Vdc | 8.0 | -5% to +5% |
|---------|-----|------------|
| -12 Vdc | 0.8 | +/- 10%    |

The maximum rated output power is 230W.

## Keyboard

- Win95 PS/2 enhanced keyboard with wrist rest
- Low-profile, 104 keys with twelve function keys
- All keys are typematic
- The keyboard uses a bi-directional serial interface to carry signals to and from the system
- Three status indicators (LEDs)

## **Environmental Specifications**

### **Ambient Temperature**

| Operating:     | 50 °F to 104 °F (10 °C to 40 °C)  |
|----------------|-----------------------------------|
| Non-operating: | 5 °F to 140 °F (- 15 °C to 60 °C) |

## Humidity

O N

| perating:     | 15% to | 80%, | no | condensation |
|---------------|--------|------|----|--------------|
| on-operating: | 10% to | 90%, | no | condensation |

## **System Unit Dimensions**

| Depth (D)  | 443 mm |
|------------|--------|
| Width (W)  | 200 mm |
| Height (H) | 350 mm |

▲ **Remark:** Specifications are subject to change without notice.

# **Appendix B: Connectors And Jumpers**

There are a number of connectors and jumpers on the motherboard. Connectors allow you to connect to different peripherals and/or devices. Jumpers, on the other hand, provide you flexibility and different functionalities when set to different values.

These jumpers were set to factory default before shipping, which gives you the best performance. You should not alter these settings unless you are sure of what you are doing. If you want to change any setting, please make sure that the computer has been turned OFF and make a note of what the original settings are. This way, you can always revert to the original settings if the new settings do not work.

## **Power Supply Connectors**

Switching power supplies from different vendors or those with different "Rated Output Power" may have different types of power connector. This section provides information on the connectors of the switching power supply that is used in your system.

The 20-pin connector of the power supply is for connection to **JATX** connector on the motherboard. Refer to **JATX** jumper described in the latter part of this appendix for the pin configurations.

The 4-pin connectors from the switching power supply are for connection to the power input signal of storage devices. All of these connectors have the same pin configurations and carry same voltages. Those connectors that are of standard sizes are to be used on devices such as 5.25" CD-ROM drive and 3.5" HDD. The 4-pin mini size connectors are for 3.5" FDD. Pin configurations are:

| Pin No. | Wire Color | Signal |
|---------|------------|--------|
| 1       | Yellow     | + 12V  |
| 2       | Black      | GND    |
| 3       | Black      | GND    |
| 4       | Red        | + 5V   |

## **Motherboard Lay-out**

Please find below the motherboard lay-out for the locations of the different jumpers and connectors.



## **Quick Reference**

| Jumpers/<br>Connectors        | Function                                     | Page |
|-------------------------------|--|------|
| JAGP                          | Accelerated Graphics Port                    | B13  |
| JATX                          | Power Supply Connector                       | B5   |
| JCD                           | ATAPI/CD Audio Connector                     | B8   |
| JCOM1, JCOM2                  | Serial Port Connectors                       | B6   |
| JCPU                          | Processor Frequency Ratio Selector<br>Jumper | B12  |
| JFAN-C, JFAN                  | CPU Fan 1/2 Headers                          | B8   |
| JFDD                          | Floppy Drive Connector                       | B10  |
| JFRONT                        | Front Panel I/O Connectors                   | B12  |
| JGAME                         | Game/MIDI Port Connector                     | B8   |
| JIDE1, JIDE2                  | PCI IDE Connectors                           | B10  |
| JIN                           | Audio Line In Connector                      | B7   |
| JISA1, JISA2,<br>JISA3        | ISA Bus Connectors                           | B15  |
| JKB/MS                        | PS/2 Keyboard/Mouse Connector                | B5   |
| JMIC                          | Audio Mic In Connector                       | B7   |
| JMPEG                         | MPEG Connector                               | B9   |
| JOUT                          | Audio Line Out Connector                     | B7   |
| JPCI1, JPCI2,<br>JPCI3, JPCI4 | PCI Bus Connectors                           | B14  |
| JPRT                          | Print Port Connector                         | B6   |
| JTEL                          | Phone In Jumper                              | B9   |
| JUSB                          | USB Connector                                | B7   |
| JWOL                          | Wake-on-LAN Jumper                           | B9   |
| JWRT                          | EEPROM Programmer Jumper                     | B11  |

## **Motherboard Connectors and Jumpers**

|     |        |     |        | Pin   | Signal | Pin | Signal |
|-----|--------|-----|--------|-------|--------|-----|--------|
|     |        |     | ••     | 7     | GND    | 14  | PS-ON# |
| •   |        |     | •••    | 8     | PWRGD  | 15  | GND    |
|     |        |     | 9      | +5VSB | 16     | GND |        |
| Pin | Signal | Pin | Signal | 10    | +12V   | 17  | GND    |
| 1   | +3.3V  | 4   | +5V    | 11    | +3.3V  | 18  | -5V    |
| 2   | +3.3V  | 5   | GND    | 12    | -12V   | 19  | +5V    |
| 3   | GND    | 6   | +5V    | 13    | GND    | 20  | +5V    |

## 1. Power Supply Connector (JATX)

The 20-pin connector from the switching power supply is connected to **JATX**.

If the switching power supply used is an ATX-compliant power supply, remote power on/off is supported and the system's power can be turned off through software control. This feature is called soft-off control.

Soft-off control allows your computer to automatically go back to the power state after being interrupted either by power outage or by disconnection of power cord. To enable this feature, your system's advanced power management must be enabled both in the BIOS setup utility and in the operating system. For BIOS setup, refer to *Chapter 3, BIOS Setup* for more details.

## 2. PS/2 Keyboard/Mouse Connector (JKB/MS)

|       | Pin | Signal | Pin | Signal      |
|-------|-----|--------|-----|-------------|
| •••   | 1   | Data   | 4   | +5V (fused) |
|       | 2   | NC     | 5   | CLK         |
| ••••• | 3   | GND    | 6   | NC          |

The PS/2 enhanced keyboard is connected to the computer via a female mini-DIN connector **JKB/MS** which is mounted on the motherboard. PS/2 mouse is connected through the keyboard.

|     |             |     |            | Pin | Signal |
|-----|-------------|-----|------------|-----|--------|
|     | · • • • • • |     |            | 5   | GND    |
|     | •••••       |     | ••••• 🛡    | 6   | DSR    |
| Pin | Signal      | Pin | Signal     | 7   | RTS    |
| 1   | DCD         | 2   | Serial In# | 8   | CTS    |
| 3   | Serial Out# | 4   | DTR#       | 9   | RI     |

#### 3. Serial Port Connectors (JCOM1, JCOM2)

**JCOM1** and **JCOM2** connectors are male DB9 (9-pin) serial port connectors built-in on the motherboard. To enable or disable this, perform BIOS Setup. Refer to *Chapter 3, BIOS Setup* for more details.

#### 4. Print Port Connector (JPRT)

| _   |                   |    |            | Pin | Signal |
|-----|-------------------|----|------------|-----|--------|
|     | (                 | 15 | Fault#     |     |        |
|     |                   | 16 | INIT#      |     |        |
|     |                   | 17 | SLCT IN#   |     |        |
| Pin | Signal Pin Signal |    | 18         | GND |        |
| 1   | Strobe#           | 8  | Data bit 6 | 19  | GND    |
| 2   | Data bit 0        | 9  | Data bit 7 | 20  | GND    |
| 3   | Data bit 1        | 10 | ACK#       | 21  | GND    |
| 4   | Data bit 2        | 11 | Busy       | 22  | GND    |
| 5   | Data bit 3        | 12 | Error      | 23  | GND    |
| 6   | Data bit 4        | 13 | Select     | 24  | GND    |
| 7   | Data bit 5        | 14 | Auto Feed# | 25  | GND    |

**JPRT** is a female DB25 (25-hole) parallel port built-in on the motherboard. You can select the mode of parallel port through Setup utility. Refer to *Chapter 3, BIOS Setup* for more details.

#### 5. USB Connector (JUSB)

В

| • • • | Pin | Signal             |
|-------|-----|--------------------|
|       | 1   | Power              |
|       | 2   | USBP0#<br>[USBP1#] |
|       | 3   | USBP0<br>[USBP1]   |
|       | 4   | GND                |

The USB (Universal Serial Bus) connector, **JUSB**, is a 2-layered connector mounted on the motherboard for connecting up to two USB devices.

## 6. Audio Line In Connector (JIN)

|   | Pin | Signal          |
|---|-----|-----------------|
| • | 1   | GND             |
|   | 2   | Audio Left Out  |
|   | 3   | Audio Right Out |

**JIN** is for connecting audio output of peripheral devices such as CD/cassette player.

B

## 7. Audio Line Out Connector (JOUT)

| Pin   | Signal         |
|-------|----------------|
| 1     | GND            |
| <br>2 | Audio Left In  |
| 3     | Audio Right In |

**JOUT** is for connect-ion to an amplifier system or other audio peripheral

devices.

### 8. Audio Mic In Connector (JMIC)

| Pin   | Signal                |
|-------|-----------------------|
| 1     | GND                   |
| 2     | Mono In               |
| <br>3 | Electret Bias Voltage |

**JMIC** is for connection to an external micro-phone.

9. Game/MIDI Port Connector (JGAME)

|     |              |     |              | Pin | Signal       |
|-----|--------------|-----|--------------|-----|--------------|
|     |              | 9   | +5V (fused)  |     |              |
|     |              | 10  | GP6 (JSBUT2) |     |              |
| Pin | Signal       | Pin | Signal       | 11  | GP2 (JSX2R)  |
| 1   | +5V (fused)  | 5   | GND          | 12  | MIDI-OUTR    |
| 2   | GP4 (JSBUT0) | 6   | GP1 (JSY1R)  | 13  | GP3 (JSY2R)  |
| 3   | GP0 (JSX1R)  | 7   | GP5 (JSBUT1) | 14  | GP7 (JSBUT3) |
| 4   | GND          | 8   | +5V (fused)  | 15  | MIDI-INR     |

**JGAME** is a 15-pin connector mounted on the motherboard for connection of joystick or MIDI devices.

### 10. CPU Fan 1 Header (JFAN-C)

| Pin   | Signal          | JF |
|-------|-----------------|----|
| <br>1 | GND             | be |
| 2     | FAN_CTRL (+12V) | wh |
| 3     | FAN_SEN*        | in |

**JFAN-C** becomes active when the system is in suspend mode.

## 11. CPU Fan 2 Header (Active Heatsink Fan, JFAN)

|  | Pin | Signal |
|--|-----|--------|
|  | 1   | GND    |
|  | 2   | +12V   |
|  | 3   | GND    |

**JFAN** becomes active when the system's power is turned on.

## **12. ATAPI**

## **CD** Audio Connector (JCD)

| Pin<br>1 | Pin | Signal      |
|----------|-----|-------------|
|          | 1   | CD_IN-Left  |
|          | 2   | GND         |
|          | 3   | GND         |
|          | 4   | CD_IN-Right |

The audio out-put signal of the CD-ROM drive is connected to **JCD**.

## 13. MPEG Connector (JMPEG)

B-8

| [   |                                |  |  |  |
|-----|--------------------------------|--|--|--|
| Pin | Signal                         |  |  |  |
| 1   | CD/MPEG Right Channel<br>Input |  |  |  |
| 2   | GND                            |  |  |  |
| 3   | GND                            |  |  |  |
| 4   | CD/MPEG Left Channel<br>Input  |  |  |  |

Jumper (JTEL)

| Pin | Signal        |  |  |  |
|-----|---------------|--|--|--|
| 1   | Telephone In  |  |  |  |
| 2   | GND           |  |  |  |
| 3   | GND           |  |  |  |
| 4   | Telephone Out |  |  |  |

**JMPEG** is for connecting MPEG-I audio in signals.

14. Phone In

This jumper is for connection to an optional modem card to enable the system when a modem phone call is received.

## 15. Wake-on-LAN Jumper (JWOL)



Wake-on-LAN is a key manageability feature for corporate systems. WOL jumper allows a management application to remotely power on a computer that is originally turned off.

### 16. Floppy Drive Connector (JFDD)

| Pin | Signal | Pin | Signal                           |  |  |  |
|-----|--------|-----|----------------------------------|--|--|--|
| 1   | GND    | 2   | DENSEL                           |  |  |  |
| 3   | GND    | 4   | Reserved                         |  |  |  |
| 5   | Key    | 6   | FDEIN                            |  |  |  |
| 7   | GND    | 8   | FDINDX# (Index)                  |  |  |  |
| 9   | GND    | 10  | FDMO0# (Motor Enable A)          |  |  |  |
| 11  | GND    | 12  | FDDS1# (Drive Select B)          |  |  |  |
| 13  | GND    | 14  | FDDS0# (Drive Select A)          |  |  |  |
| 15  | GND    | 16  | FDMO1# (Motor Enable B)          |  |  |  |
| 17  | MSEN1  | 18  | FDDIR# (Stepper Motor Direction) |  |  |  |
| 19  | GND    | 20  | FDSTEP# (Step Pulse)             |  |  |  |
| 21  | GND    | 22  | FDWD# (Write Data)               |  |  |  |
| 23  | GND    | 24  | FDWE# (Write Enable)             |  |  |  |
| 25  | GND    | 26  | FDTRK0# (Track 0)                |  |  |  |
| 27  | MSEN0  | 28  | FDWPD# (Write Protect)           |  |  |  |
| 29  | GND    | 30  | FDRDATA# (Read Data)             |  |  |  |
| 31  | GND    | 32  | FDHEAD# (Side 1 Select)          |  |  |  |
| 33  | GND    | 34  | DSKCHG# (Diskette Change)        |  |  |  |

Floppy disk drives are connected to the motherboard by using a 34-pin flat cable to **JFDD**.

#### **17. PCI IDE Connectors (JIDE1, JIDE2)**

The PCI-bus IDE type devices are connected to the motherboard by using a 40-pin Daisy-chained cable to **JIDE1** and **JIDE2**. JIDE1 is for the primary IDE connector while JIDE2 is for the secondary IDE connector. Those signals in brackets are signals for the secondary IDE connector.

|     | (Secondary)                          |     |                                      |
|-----|--------------------------------------|-----|--------------------------------------|
|     |                                      | ::: | ::::::                               |
|     |                                      | ::: | ::::::                               |
| ,   | (Primary)                            |     |                                      |
| Pin | Signal                               | Pin | Signal                               |
| 1   | Reset IDE                            | 2   | GND                                  |
| 3   | Data 7                               | 4   | Data 8                               |
| 5   | Data 6                               | 6   | Data 9                               |
| 7   | Data 5                               | 8   | Data 10                              |
| 9   | Data 4                               | 10  | Data 11                              |
| 11  | Data 3                               | 12  | Data 12                              |
| 13  | Data 2                               | 14  | Data 13                              |
| 15  | Data 1                               | 16  | Data 14                              |
| 17  | Data 0                               | 18  | Data 15                              |
| 19  | GND                                  | 20  | Key                                  |
| 21  | DDRQ0 [DDRQ1]                        | 22  | GND                                  |
| 23  | I/O Write#                           | 24  | GND                                  |
| 25  | I/O Read#                            | 26  | GND                                  |
| 27  | IOCHRDY                              | 90  | P_ALE (Cable                         |
| 29  | DDACK0#                              | 20  | Select pull-up)                      |
| 20  | [DDACK1#]                            | 30  | GND                                  |
| 31  | IRQ14 [IRQ15]                        | 32  | Reserved                             |
| 33  | Address 1                            | 34  | Reserved                             |
| 35  | Address 0                            | 36  | Address 2                            |
| 37  | Chip Select 1P# [Chip<br>Select 1S#] | 38  | Chip Select 3P# [Chip<br>Select 3S#] |
| 39  | Activity#                            | 40  | GND                                  |

## 18. EEPROM Programmer Jumper (JWRT)

| Pin | Signal Name    |  |  |  |  |  |
|-----|----------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| 1   | Pull up 1K Ohm |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2   | Ground         |  |  |  |  |  |

This jumper is used for programming EEPROM of the Sound chip.

|                   | Processor Core<br>Frequency Ratio | 1-2 | 3-4 | 5-6 | 7-8 |
|-------------------|-----------------------------------|-----|-----|-----|-----|
|                   | 2 (133MHz)                        | IN  | IN  | IN  | IN  |
|                   | 3 (200MHz)                        | IN  | OUT | IN  | OUT |
| <u>( #.#.#.</u> ) | 4 (266MHz)                        | OUT | IN  | IN  | IN  |
| <u> </u>          | 2.5 (166MHz)                      | IN  | IN  | OUT | OUT |
|                   | 3.5 (233MHz)                      | IN  | OUT | OUT | OUT |
|                   | 4.5 (300MHz)                      | OUT | IN  | OUT | OUT |
|                   | 2 (133MHz)                        | OUT | OUT | OUT | OUT |
|                   | 5 (333MHz)                        | OUT | OUT | IN  | IN  |

#### 19. Processor Frequency Ratio Selector Jumper (JCPU)

**JCPU** jumper is used to set CPU speed.

#### 20. Front Panel I/O Connectors (JFRONT)

**JFRONT** provides I/O connections to the following:

- Speaker Disables or enables on-board speakers. (On-board speakers are a manufacturing option.) Speakers provide error beep code information during POST (Power On Self Test) in the event that the computer cannot use the video interface. Note that the speakers are not connected to the audio subsystem, so, does not receive output form it.
- Hard Drive LED Indicates that data is being read from or written to IDE devices that are connected through the built-in IDE port.
- Infrared (IrDA) Connector Provides connection to an IrDA module. If this module is connected, be sure to configure serial port 2 as an IrDA port. (See *Chapter 3*, *BIOS Setup* for details.)
- Power On Connector Provides connection to the front panel power switch.

|     |                   | Pin | Signal          |
|-----|-------------------|-----|-----------------|
|     |                   | 8   | Vcc             |
|     |                   | 9   | IRTX            |
|     |                   | 10  | No Connect      |
| Pin | Signal            | 11  | IRR4_Mode       |
| 1   | Vcc               | 12  | No Connect      |
| 2   | Pull up 330 Ohm 3 | 13  | No Connect      |
| 3   | Key               | 14  | Speaker         |
| 4   | No Connect        | 15  | Vcc             |
| 5   | IRRX              | 16  | HD-LED          |
| 6   | GND               | 17  | Power On Switch |
| 7   | GND               | 18  | GND             |

B-13

• Power LED – Indicates that the system's power is on.

| Pin | Α          | В          | Pin | Α          | В        |
|-----|------------|------------|-----|------------|----------|
| 1   | +12V       | No Connect | 34  | Vcc3.3     | Vcc3.3   |
| 2   | No Connect | Vcc        | 35  | AD22       | AD21     |
| 3   | Reserved   | Vcc        | 36  | AD20       | AD19     |
| 4   | No Connect | No Connect | 37  | GND        | GND      |
| 5   | GND        | GND        | 38  | AD18       | AD17     |
| 6   | INTA#      | INTB#      | 39  | AD16       | C/BE2#   |
| 7   | RST#       | CLK        | 40  | Vcc3.3     | Vcc3.3   |
| 8   | GNT1#      | REQ#       | 41  | FRAME#     | IRDY#    |
| 9   | Vcc3.3     | Vcc3.3     | 42  | Reserved   | Reserved |
| 10  | ST1        | ST0        | 43  | GND        | GND      |
| 11  | Reserved   | ST2        | 44  | Reserved   | Reserved |
| 12  | PIPE#      | RBF#       | 45  | Vcc3.3     | Vcc3.3   |
| 13  | GND        | GND        | 46  | TRDY#      | DEVSEL#  |
| 14  | No Connect | No Connect | 47  | STOP#      | Vcc3.3   |
| 15  | SBA1       | SBA0       | 48  | No Connect | PERR#    |
| 16  | Vcc3.3     | Vcc3.3     | 49  | GND        | GND      |
| 17  | SBA3       | SBA2       | 50  | PAR        | SERR#    |
| 18  | Reserved   | SB_STB     | 51  | AD15       | C/BE1#   |
| 19  | GND        | GND        | 52  | Vcc3.3     | Vcc3.3   |
| 20  | SBA5       | SBA4       | 53  | AD13       | AD14     |
| 21  | SBA7       | SBA6       | 54  | AD11       | AD12     |
| 22  | Key        | Key        | 55  | GND        | GND      |

## 21. Accelerated Graphics Port (JAGP)

Appendix B: Connectors & Jumpers

| 23 | Key      | Key     | 56 | AD9      | AD10    |
|----|----------|---------|----|----------|---------|
| 24 | Key      | Key     | 57 | C/BE0#   | AD8     |
| 25 | Key      | Key     | 58 | Vcc3.3   | Vcc3.3  |
| 26 | AD30     | AD31    | 59 | Reserved | AD_STB0 |
| 27 | AD28     | AD29    | 60 | AD6      | AD7     |
| 28 | Vcc3.3   | Vcc3.3  | 61 | GND      | GND     |
| 29 | AD26     | AD27    | 62 | AD4      | AD5     |
| 30 | AD24     | AD25    | 63 | AD2      | AD3     |
| 31 | GND      | GND     | 64 | Vcc3.3   | Vcc3.3  |
| 32 | Reserved | AD_STB1 | 65 | AD0      | AD1     |
| 33 | C/BE3#   | AD23    | 66 | SMB0     | SMB1    |

JAGP is a 66-pin slot mounted on the motherboard for connecting AGP card.

## 22. PCI Bus Connectors (JPCI1, JPCI2, JPCI3, JPCI4)

There are a total of four PCI slots available on the motherboard, namely, **JPCI1**, **JPCI2**, **JPCI3**, and **JPCI4**. However, note that **JPCI4** is a shared slot which means that you can connect a PCI card only if no ISA card is connected on **JISA1** slot.

| Pin | А          | В          | Pin | А      | В       |
|-----|------------|------------|-----|--------|---------|
| 1   | GND        | -12 V      | 32  | AD16   | AD17    |
| 2   | +12 V      | GND        | 33  | +3.3 V | C/BE2#  |
| 3   | +5 V       | GND        | 34  | FRAME# | GND     |
| 4   | +5 V       | No Connect | 35  | GND    | IRDY#   |
| 5   | +5 V       | +5 V       | 36  | TRDY#  | +3.3 V  |
| 6   | PIRQ#A     | +5 V       | 37  | GND    | DEVSEL# |
| 7   | PIRQ#C     | PIRQ#B     | 38  | STOP#  | GND     |
| 8   | +5 V       | PIRQ#D     | 39  | +3.3 V | PLOCK#  |
| 9   | Reserved   | No Connect | 40  | +5 V   | PERR#   |
| 10  | +5 V (I/O) | Reserved   | 41  | +5 V   | +3.3 V  |
| 11  | Reserved   | No Connect | 42  | GND    | SERR#   |
| 12  | GND        | GND        | 43  | PAR    | +3.3 V  |
| 13  | GND        | GND        | 44  | AD15   | C/BE1#  |
| 14  | Reserved   | Reserved   | 45  | +3.3 V | AD14    |
| 15  | PCIRST#    | GND        | 46  | AD13   | GND     |
| 16  | +5 V (I/O) | CLK        | 47  | AD11   | AD12    |
| 17  | GNT#       | GND        | 48  | GND    | AD10    |

B-14

| Pin | А       | В          | Pin | А          | В          |
|-----|---------|------------|-----|------------|------------|
| 18  | GND     | REQ#       | 49  | AD09       | GND        |
| 19  | PCI_PM# | +5 V (I/O) | 50  | Key        | Key        |
| 20  | AD30    | AD31       | 51  | Key        | Key        |
| 21  | +3.3 V  | AD29       | 52  | C/BE0#     | AD08       |
| 22  | AD28    | GND        | 53  | +3.3 V     | AD07       |
| 23  | AD26    | AD27       | 54  | AD06       | +3.3 V     |
| 24  | GND     | AD25       | 55  | AD04       | AD05       |
| 25  | AD24    | +3.3 V     | 56  | GND        | AD03       |
| 26  | AD26    | C/BE3#     | 57  | AD02       | GND        |
| 27  | +3.3 V  | AD23       | 58  | AD00       | AD01       |
| 28  | AD22    | GND        | 59  | +5 V (I/O) | +5 V (I/O) |
| 29  | AD20    | AD21       | 60  | PU_ACK64#  | +5V        |
| 30  | GND     | AD19       | 61  | +5 V       | +5 V       |
| 31  | AD18    | +3.3 V     | 62  | +5 V       | +5 V       |

## 23. ISA Bus Connectors (JISA1, JISA2, JISA3)

There are a total of three ISA slots available on the motherboard, namely, **JISA1**, **JISA2**, **JISA3**. However, note that **JISA1** is a shared slot which means that you can connect an ISA card only if no PCI card is connected on **JPCI4** slot.

| Pin | В        | А       | D        | С     |
|-----|----------|---------|----------|-------|
| 1   | GND      | IOCHK#  | MEMCS16# | SBHE# |
| 2   | BRSTDRV  | SD7     | IOCS16#  | LA23  |
| 3   | +5 V     | SD6     | IRQ10    | LA22  |
| 4   | IRQ9     | SD5     | IRQ11    | LA21  |
| 5   | -5 V     | SD4     | IRQ12    | LA20  |
| 6   | DRQ2     | SD3     | IRQ15    | LA19  |
| 7   | -12 V    | SD2     | IRQ14    | LA18  |
| 8   | ZEROWS#  | SD1     | DACK0#   | LA17  |
| 9   | +12 V    | SD0     | DRQ0     | MEMR# |
| 10  | GND      | IOCHRDY | DACK5#   | MEMW# |
| 11  | SMEMW#   | AEN     | DRQ5     | SD8   |
| 12  | SMEMR#   | SA19    | DACK6#   | SD9   |
| 13  | IOW#     | SA18    | DRQ6     | SD10  |
| 14  | IOR#     | SA17    | DACK7#   | SD11  |
| 15  | DACK3#   | SA16    | DRQ7     | SD12  |
| 16  | DRQ3     | SA15    | +5 V     | SD13  |
| 17  | DACK1#   | SA14    | RMASTER# | SD14  |
| 18  | DRQ1     | SA13    | GND      | SD15  |
| 19  | REFRESH# | SA12    |          |       |
| 20  | SYSCLK   | SA11    |          |       |
| 21  | IRQ7     | SA10    |          |       |
| 22  | IRQ6     | SA9     |          |       |
| 23  | IRQ5     | SA8     |          |       |
| 24  | IRQ4     | SA7     |          |       |
| 25  | IRQ3     | SA6     |          |       |
| 26  | DACK2#   | SA5     |          |       |
| 27  | TC       | SA4     |          |       |
| 28  | BALE     | SA3     |          |       |
| 29  | +5 V     | SA2     |          |       |
| 30  | OSC1     | SA1     |          |       |
| 31  | GND      | SA0     |          |       |
|     | Key      | Key     |          |       |